
annual report
2011 - 2012



COVER PHOTO: 

Frank Hanlon
Prostate Cancer Survivor



executive summary
Our Vision, Mission & Values 4

Accountability 4

Highlights 5

Chairman’s Report 6

CEO’s Report 8

programs
Research  12

Awareness 21

Support  25

community participation
Movember  36

Big Aussie Barbie  38

Pirtek 40

Community Fundraising Highlights 42

our people
Boards & Committees 54

Staff 56

governance & Finance
Financial Highlights 60

Financial Statements 62

tHanK you
Rotary  100

Corporate Partners 100

Trusts & Clubs 100

Estates & In-Memoriam 100

Individuals & Community Groups 101

Pro Bono Support 102

Honorary Life Members 102 

Members 102

Research Partners 102







Prostate Cancer Foundation of Australia (PCFA) is the peak national 
body for prostate cancer in Australia. We are dedicated to reducing the 
impact of prostate cancer on Australian men, their partners, families 
and the wider community. 

We do this by: 

•	 	Promoting	and	funding	world	leading,	innovative	research	into	
prostate	cancer	

•	 	Implementing	awareness	campaigns	and	education	programs	for	
the	Australian	community,	health	professionals	and	Governments

•	 	Supporting	men	and	their	families	affected	by	prostate	cancer,	
through	evidence-based	information	and	resources,	support	
groups	and	Prostate	Cancer	Specialist	Nurses

PCFA receives Government funding for specific projects and relies on the generosity 
of individuals, the community and partnerships, such as those with The Movember 
Foundation and Commonwealth Bank, to carry out our essential work.

PCFA’s five values are:

•	 	Integrity

•	 	Optimism

•	 	Compassion

•	 	Respect

•	 	Commitment

Accountability	

PCFA operates under the charitable fundraising legislation, as prescribed by each 
individual State in Australia and associated regulations, including Corporations 
Law. PCFA has been granted endorsement as a tax-deductible gift recipient under 
Subdivision 30-BA of the Income Tax Act 1997 by the Australian Commissioner  
of taxation.

our vision, mission & values 
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2011/2012 ACTIVE 
RESEARCH GRANTS

HigHligHts

With the very 
generous support 

of MoveMber

the results of pcfa’s

10ANNIVERSARY
Community Attitudes survey

TH

Research,	Awareness,	Support:	Ten	Years	
of	Progress	in	Prostate	Cancer

published in a report

the nuMber of  
AFFIlIATEd SuPPoRT gRouPS  

in every state and territory  
across australia greW to

135distribution of More than 

50,000 
taKe-aWay cards through the 

CoNVENIENCE  
AdVERTISINg CAmPAIgN

YOU’RE NOT ALONE.

Around 120,000 Australian men are living with prostate cancer. If you’re one 
of them, you and your family don’t have to face it alone. There are 125 Prostate 
Cancer Support Groups across Australia, where you can get emotional and 
practical support from people who know what you’re going through.

If YOU’vE  
dIscOvEREd  
YOU’vE gOT 

PROsTATE  
cANcER

If you need support, call 1300 109 831 
between 9am-6pm, Monday to friday.

www.pcfa.org.au 

Prostate cancer foundation of Australia. supporting people with prostate cancer.

pcfa embarked on a significant 
collaboration with the national 
health and Medical research 

council, cancer council australia 
and the various medical colleges 

and other expert groups to develop 
national evidence-based clinical 
guidelines on psa testing and 
management of test detected 

prostate cancer. 

Once	developed,	these	
guidelines	will	be	a	national	

and	international	first.

RESEARCH PRojECTS
Excellent57
Were funded across australia

australia’s  
FIRST PRoSTATE 

CANCER SPECIAlIST 
NuRSINg SERVICE 

placing 13 nurses  
in locations 

around australia 
in every state  
and territory

13

We launched 
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the year has again been one of 
significant change and achievement 
due in no small way to graeme’s 
leadership and our wonderful 
volunteers and staff at all levels across 
the country.

during the year we recognised a 
number of very special people for their 
outstanding individual contributions  
to pcfa:

life memberships

emeritus professor  
dexter dunphy aM

peter hledik

graeme Johnson

patricia Watson

PCFA Awards

chris Mcpherson

the hon Wayne swan Mp

max gardner Awards

daryl hyland

Max shub

John stead

in June 2012, at a special Meeting, 
pcfa adopted an amended 
constitution, which reflects a 
streamlining of the national board 
composition and national committees. 
in particular, the support & advocacy 
committee was renamed national 
support groups committee (nsgc) 
to reflect its focus on support services 
for men and their families affected 
by prostate cancer. the membership 
of nsgc was also streamlined to 

“It	is	with	much	pleasure	that	I	present	my	first	report	
as	National	Chairman	of	PCFA.	Taking	over	the	role	
from	Graeme	Johnson	in	May	2012	was	indeed	a	great	
honour	and	a	privilege	for	me,	as	was	serving	as	his	
Deputy	for	six	years.	His	mentoring	over	that	period	
has	proved	to	be	invaluable.”

cHairman’s report
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cHairman’s report executive summary

the chairmen of each of the five 
chapter councils plus chairman of the 
committee who is a national director.

2012 also saw changes to and 
strengthening of pcfa’s state boards. 
We are pleased to welcome roz baker 
as chair of the Western australia state 
board, professor Judith clements as 
chair of the Queensland state board, 
and peter gebert as chair of the 
victoria & tasmania state board. 

i would like to thank and acknowledge 
the contributions of Jim freemantle 
and des grogan who retired as 
Western australia and victoria & 
tasmania chairman respectively and 
in so doing retired from the national 
board plus former national chairmen, 
patricia Watson and graeme Johnson 
who both made very significant 
contributions to pcfa, also retiring 
from the national board.

pcfa is indeed extremely fortunate 
to receive fantastic support from an 
army of volunteers which includes the 
ever expanding support group network, 
directors, committee members and 
supporters of every kind. i specifically 
need to acknowledge the wonderful 
support i receive from deputy national 
chairman, Jim hughes aM who served 
as Queensland state chairman before 
taking up his current role. 

under the professional leadership of 
our ceo, dr anthony lowe, and his 
talented management team, pcfa 
further strengthened the rigour and 
evidence-base for our advocacy work 
and engagement across our diverse 
group of stakeholders and supporters 

by bringing new skills, methodologies 
and approaches into the organisation.

this evidence-based approach was 
borne out in pcfa / cancer council 
australia’s joint initiative to develop 
national clinical practice guidelines 
for psa testing and management of 
test-detected prostate cancer. pcfa 
is working closely with our medical 
colleagues, cancer australia, national 
health and Medical research council 
(nhMrc), cancer councils, public 
health experts and epidemiologists 
on this initiative. this led to pcfa 
representatives participating on the 
nhMrc and pcfa / cancer council 
australia expert advisory panels on 
psa testing.

i am personally very encouraged by 
this collaboration as it represents 
the greatest potential for ending the 
debate on testing and delivering the 
most likely benefits to men across  
the country.

our engagement with government  
at both state and federal levels and 
with other key stakeholders in the 
prostate cancer space is reaping 
significant benefits. i am looking 
forward to the challenges ahead and 
to working closely with our colleagues 
to continue to make progress on these 
important issues.

similarly, the 10th anniversary launch 
of pcfa’s community attitudes 
survey provided an important platform 
for us to celebrate the contribution 
we have made to the prostate 
cancer arena over the past decade 
and to continue to advocate for new 

services, increased funding and 
greater community understanding of 
the needs of men and their families 
dealing with prostate cancer.

perhaps a highlight of the year was 
the official launch of pcfa’s prostate 
cancer specialist nursing service, the 
first such service in australia. this 
incredibly valuable program would not 
be possible without the support of the 
Movember foundation. this program 
demonstrates the tangible benefits 
that come from the great partnership 
between our two organisations for 
australian men and families affected 
by prostate cancer. 

i would like to thank pcfa’s many 
wonderful supporters, including 
the Movember foundation, 
commonwealth bank, Qantas and 
the many other individuals and 
organisations that support us both 
financially and by donating their time. 
our work as the peak national body 
for prostate cancer in australia to fund 
research, raise awareness and provide 
support to men and their families 
affected by prostate cancer would 
not be possible without their very 
generous support.

david Sandoe oAm 
national chairman
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Research

during the year, with the very 
generous support of the Movember 
foundation, we provided funding to 
57 excellent research projects in five 
states across australia. the ultimate 
aim of pcfa’s research program is to 
find a cure for prostate cancer – the 
second most common cause of cancer 
deaths in australian men. 

in the meantime, we need to discover 
better diagnostic markers; better 
treatments; better preventative 
measures; and to improve outcomes 
for men and their families living with 
prostate cancer.

to date pcfa’s research program has 
resulted in a high level of innovation 
and increased australia’s prostate 
cancer research capacity. for example:

•  novel research into a vaccine that 
teaches our immune system to 
fight cancer is successfully being 
conducted at the Mater institute 
by dr Kristin radford and will soon 
enter clinical trials

•  a novel concept developed 
by associate professor Martin 
lackmann at Monash university 
has led to the discovery of an 
antibody based drug which has 
also entered clinical trials

•  research conducted by professor 
Mary haines and her team at 
the sax institute aims to improve 
evidence based care for locally 
advanced prostate cancer via a 
randomised phased trial.

these and other pcfa research 
projects show great potential for 
improved treatment options for  
men with prostate cancer.

Awareness

in september 2012, the results of 
pcfa’s 10th anniversary community 
attitudes survey were published in a 
report entitled Research, Awareness, 
Support: Ten Years of Progress in 

ceo’s report

“I	am	pleased	to	report	that	2011-12	was	a	year	of	
positive	development	in	all	aspects	of	PCFA’s	work.”	
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executive summary

Prostate Cancer. the research was 
conducted in March and april 2012.

We found that australian men see 
prostate cancer as the single most 
important health issue they face 
and one of the top five health issues 
for the community at large. We 
were extremely pleased to see that 
pcfa’s efforts to raise awareness and 
knowledge of prostate cancer are 
paying off with a 12% increase in the 
percentage of men who feel informed 
about the disease over the past decade.

awareness and knowledge of the psa 
test has also increased and with more 
than 40% of men now being tested 
every year. however, we also found 
that almost 40% of men believe the 
advice they receive about testing is 
confusing. the need for clear and 
consistent advice about testing, 
supported by every medical college 
and all other interested parties,  
is evident. 

i am pleased to report that pcfa is 
working in collaboration with national 
health and Medical research council, 
cancer council australia and the 
various medical colleges and other 
expert groups to develop national 
evidence-based clinical guidelines 
on psa testing and management of 
test detected prostate cancer. once 
developed, these guidelines will be a 
national and international first.

Support

in our community attitudes survey we 
also found that almost one quarter of 
men who have been diagnosed with or 
are undergoing further investigation for 
prostate cancer contacted a support 
organisation and found it to be a very 
valuable source of information and 
support. pleasingly, prostate cancer 
support groups were very highly rated 
by participants in the survey, with an 
average satisfaction score of 8 out of 
10. however, we also found that men 
lack knowledge of support services 

and need health professionals to 
be more active in guiding them to 
appropriate information and support.

With funding from the federal 
government through cancer australia, 
pcfa continues to strengthen and 
grow our national network of affiliated 
support groups. i am pleased to 
report that we now have 135 affiliated 
support groups in every state and 
territory across australia, including 
two support groups in Melbourne 
and sydney specifically for gay and 
bisexual men. Many new support 
groups are currently planned and 
we expect to increase the number 
substantially over the coming year.

on 3rd May, with the very generous 
support of Movember, we launched 
australia’s first prostate cancer 
specialist nursing service. this three 
year pilot program has placed 13 
specialist nurses in every state and 
territory, with a mix of metropolitan, 
rural and regional hospital locations 
and in both the public and private 
systems. the specialist nurses will 
help those affected by prostate  
cancer by:

•  providing a point of contact and 
support for patients and carers

•  assisting patients to access 
services in their hospital and in 
their community both during and 
after treatment

•  providing reliable information about 
diagnosis and treatment plans

•  coordinating care wherever a 
patient is in their cancer journey.

Thank you to our supporters

pcfa’s work would not be possible 
without our many wonderfully 
generous supporters and volunteers 
who contribute their time and money 
to the cause. in particular, i would like 
to acknowledge the very generous 
support of our major benefactor,  
the Movember foundation. 

ceo’s report

Movember provided $5 million of 
funding for pcfa’s research program; 
and $1.1 million of additional funding 
for the first part of the prostate cancer 
specialist nursing service, bringing 
Movember’s total funding for the 
nursing service to $3.6 million.

i would also like to thank 
commonwealth bank for their support 
as major sponsor of our september 
fundraising and awareness campaign, 
the big aussie barbie. commonwealth 
bank staff at branches around 
australia generously contributed 
their time to raise awareness of 
prostate cancer and funds for pcfa. 
commonwealth bank is pcfa’s longest 
standing partner and it is a partnership 
of which pcfa is very proud.

pcfa also received very generous 
support from pirtek through the 
pirtek fishing challenge and other 
fundraising initiatives. this year 6,500 
anglers competed in the pirtek fishing 
challenge with 100% of entry fees 
going directly to pcfa.

finally, i would like to give my heartfelt 
thanks to chairman david sandoe 
oaM, deputy chairman Jim hughes 
aM, the national board, state boards 
and national committees, and the 
thousands of support group members 
and ambassador speakers around 
australia who generously contribute 
their time supporting men and their 
families affected by prostate cancer 
and raising awareness of the disease. 
together we can be justifiably proud 
of pcfa’s work in research, awareness 
and support.

dr Anthony lowe 
chief executive officer
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the overall objective of the think 
tank was to identify a clear long 
term research funding strategy for 
consideration by pcfa’s national 
board. this strategy will provide the 
basis for a priority-driven national 
prostate cancer research action plan. 
individual discussion groups were 
comprised of pcfa research advisory 
committee members; community 
members; men affected by prostate 
cancer; research funding organisation 
representatives; prostate cancer 
researchers and clinicians and pcfa 
executive team members. More than 
42 participants assessed the values 
of the research program, its impact, 
strengths, gaps and challenges ahead. 

four themes were identified as key to 
the future growth and development of 
the research program:

Funding

a need to grow pcfa’s funding base 
for research to enable funding clinical 

trials, epidemiology, psychosocial  
and multidisciplinary research.  
Made possible via increased  
internal fundraising efforts. 

Collaboration

a need to develop a collaborative 
approach to government funding for 
australian prostate cancer research 
centres and a desire for greater 
collaboration internationally, possibly 
with reciprocal funding for training 
and research; and a desire for greater 
multi-disciplinary collaboration.

diversification

a desire for greater emphasis 
on clinical trials, clinician 
researchers, translational research, 
psycho-oncology and other non-basic 
science research areas via broadening 
our research program to include 
priority areas such as social science 
research, and establishing expert 
driven sub-committees. 

Priority driven

the main theme in addition to setting 
priorities to drive diversification, 
was consumer driven priorities 
perhaps via establishing a consumer 
sub-committee.

one of the most discussed themes of the 
day was collaboration. participants were 
of the unanimous view that pcfa needs 
to develop a collaborative approach 
between the main prostate cancer 
research groups in australia to ensure 
their collective research standing and 
international competitiveness. further, 
there was a strongly held view that 
collaboration between groups will be 
essential to securing further federal 
government funding for australian 
prostate cancer research centres 
and the subsequent success of these 
centres’ productive outcomes from  
the funding.

Think	Tank	–	Research	Program	Strategy	2013	and	Beyond

researcH

On the 24th February 
2012, PCFA held a Think 
Tank to review the 
strategy of its Research 
Program and plan for the 
future. This Think Tank 
brought together leading 
Australian prostate cancer 
researchers, community 
members, representatives 
from prostate cancer 
funding bodies, PCFA’s 
Research Advisory 
Committee members and 
PCFA Research Program 
staff to discuss current 
and emerging needs of 
prostate cancer funding  
in Australia. Above: Prostate Cancer Researchers in the Epigenetics Research Group 

Cancer Program Garvan Institute of Medical Research
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Following feedback from senior prostate cancer 
researchers, PCFA hosted a Round Table to discuss and 
agree on the optimal structures and processes to facilitate 
collaboration between groups. 

the collaborative research roundtable 
discussion took place in Melbourne on 
20th april 2012 and it was attended by 
the following senior researchers: 

Professor Anthony Costello 

Professor Colleen Nelson 

Professor Frank gardiner Am

Professor gail Risbridger

Professor john mills 

Professor judith Clements

dr lisa Butler

Professor Peter leedman 

The late Professor Rob Sutherland Ao

dr Scott Williams

Professor Suzanne Chambers 

dr Renea Taylor 

Professor Wayne Tilley

pcfa’s ceo, dr anthony lowe, 
chairman of pcfa’s national board 
Mr david sandoe oaM and director 
of research programs, dr Miranda 
Xhilaga were also present.

senior researchers discussed the 
positive impact of funding allocations 
via pcfa’s research program in the 
last five years and the current grant 
schemes, and put forward their 
thoughts and suggestions for the 
future strategy of the program. the 
meeting reached consensus on two 
main points: 

1.  that collaboration was necessary 
for most if not all research projects 
and programs.

2.  that a specific grant scheme to 
foster and/or reward collaboration, 
with sufficient funds to back such 
a multi-site, multi-disciplinary 
collaboration, is a good idea.

Collaborative	Roundtable

researcH programs

“Collaboration	is	
necessary	for	most	
if	not	all	research	
projects	and	
programs”
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Dr	Fatima	Valdes	Mora
Epigenetics Research  
Group Cancer Program, 
Garvan Institute of  
Medical Research

14



This year, in its fourth year running, PCFA partnered for 
the first time with Ovarian Cancer Australia (OCA) to 
deliver the most exciting Annual Research Update yet. 

this year’s aru was a highly 
interactive forum with the greatest 
emphasis on informing men and 
women with or without prostate or 
ovarian cancer and their families 
about prostate and ovarian health as 
well as prostate and ovarian cancer 
research related issues from diagnosis 
to treatment. 

this aru aimed to:

•  disseminate prostate and ovarian 
research results and research in 
progress to our major corporate 
sponsors and individuals affected 
by these diseases; 

•  provide a rich and stimulating 
environment for individuals 
affected by prostate and ovarian 
cancer to directly ask research 
related questions; 

•  allow our individual donors and 
major corporate sponsors to see 
the impact their donations have 
had on the men and women living 
with the diseases. 

the 2012 aru was held in Melbourne 
on May 24th. Moderated by media 
personality Julie Mccrossin, this 
was a one day meeting, where 
presentations by researchers were 
delivered in everyday language and 
panel discussion topics were chosen 
to accommodate some of the most 
important emerging issues in the field. 
the meeting was attended by 102 men 
and women living with either prostate 
or ovarian cancer and their carers, 
researchers and corporate sponsors.

the theme of the aru “our research 
– your future” was chosen to reflect 
pcfa’s and oca’s strong mutual  
belief that investing in research  
today will secure a world free of  
cancer tomorrow. 

professor Mark frydenberg and  
a/prof. Martin lackmann gave an 
update on two different research 
topics: progress in the victorian 
prostate cancer registry project and 
results of an antibody based new 
drug that can potentially fight solid 
tumours such as the cancer of the 
prostate. both projects are funded 
by Movember. Movember young 
investigator dr addie Wotten, 
dr david pook and palliative nurse 
Mary leahy sat amongst other 
members of the discussion panel  
and answered questioned posed  
by the audience.

Annual	Research	Update	Meeting	2012: 
Our	Research	–	Your	future

researcH programs

The	theme	of	the	ARU	
“Our	Research	–	Your	
Future”	was	chosen	
to	reflect	PCFA’s	and	
OCA’s	strong	mutual	
belief	that	investing	
in	research	today	will	
secure	a	world	free	of	
cancer	tomorrow.	
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2011	Annual	Funding	Round

researcH

In	the	2011	funding	
round	PCFA	received	
88	new	applications	
for	funding.	Of	these	
submissions,	75	were	
eligible	for	funding	
based	on	the	criteria	
outlined	for	each	 
grant	scheme.	

on Friday, 21 october 2011, 
PCFA’s Research Advisory 
Committee gathered to 
deliberate on research funding 
allocation 2011-2014. Following 
the RAC recommendations, the 
National Board approved total 
funding of $4,550,000 to 15 
grants in five categories: 

movember Young Investigator 
grants

movember Concept grants

movember New direction 
development Awards

movember Equipment grants

Cancer Australia Priority-driven 
Collaborative Cancer Research 
Scheme

CATEGORY 1 

Movember Young Investigator Grants 2012 and beyond

YI0911 dr mitchell lawrence, 
monash university, VIC

the behaviour of prostate cancer 
cells is regulated by their surrounding 
environment known as the stroma. 
the stroma has been proposed 
as a therapeutic target, but it is a 
diverse mix of cells that needs to be 
specifically targeted. dr lawrence’s 
new data show that not all stromal 
cells are equal; a subset of stromal 
cells exhibit features of adult stem cells 
and promote the formation of prostate 
cancer. therefore, the goal of this 
project is to directly isolate this potent 
subpopulation of cells from tumour 
tissue and study their role in prostate 
cancer progression.

YI1611 dr Helen Pearson,  
melbourne university, VIC

loss of cell polarity is a characteristic 
of cancer whereby the disordered 
orientation of cells results in 
unorganised tissue structures where 
cells have gained the ability to pile on 
top of each other or migrate away. 
the mechanism underlying this 
phenomenon remains unclear. dr 
pearson has described a previously 
unrecognised role for genes that 
control cell polarity in prostate tumor 
formation and growth. she proposes 
that planar cell polarity proteins 
play a tumour suppressive role in 
the prostate. in this grant proposal, 
she describes experiments to test 
this hypothesis and to dissect the 
molecular mechanisms of this event, 
thus providing a novel route for 
therapeutic intervention and  
improving our understanding  
of prostate aetiology.

Co-funded by Cure Cancer  
Australia Foundation.

YI2011 dr jason dowling,  
CSIRo Australian e-Health  
Research Centre, Qld 

external beam radiation therapy is a 
major and successful treatment for 
prostate cancer. however treatment 
side effects can include rectal bleeding, 
rectal urgency, incontinence, erection 
problems and inflammation of the bowel. 
Mri allows the borders of the prostate, 
rectum and bladder to be identified with 
greater precision than ct scans. the aim 
of this project is to reduce treatment side 
effects by using Mri scans for treatment 
planning. building on his previous work, 
dr dowling will identify the boundaries 
of these organs from Mri scans with a 
very high level of accuracy and develop 
treatment plans based on the Mr 
information alone. this is a first step 
towards next generation combined Mri-
linear accelerator treatment machines.

Co-funded by Cure Cancer  
Australia Foundation.

YI0707 dr jeff Holst,  
Centenary Institute, NSW

l-type amino acid transporters such as 
lat1 and lat3 mediate the uptake of 
essential amino acids. in their recent 
paper holst et al showed that prostate 
cancer cells coordinate the expression 
of lat1 and lat3 in order to maintain 
sufficient levels of leucine needed for 
mtorc1 signalling and cell growth. 
inhibiting lat function was sufficient 
to decrease cell growth and mtorc1 
signalling in prostate cancer cells. 
overall results show how prostate 
cancer cells respond to demands for 
increased essential amino acids, by 
coordinately activating amino acid 
transporter pathways vital for tumour 
outgrowth. their recent (unpublished) 
work has extended these results using a 
bioluminescent tumour model developed 
last year, showing that knockdown of 
lat1 or lat3 inhibits tumour growth.

16



researcH programs

CATEGORY 2 

Movember Concept Grants 

CG0611 Prof Roger daly,  
garvan Institute of medical  
Research, NSW

a particular gene rearrangement is 
found in about half of all prostate 
cancers. this is known to promote 
prostate cancer development, but how 
this occurs is unclear. this project 
aims to resolve this issue by using a 
new, high-throughput technology that 
characterises in a global fashion all of 
the regulatory signals within a cancer 
cell. since blocking these signals may 
stop cancer cells growing or spreading 
throughout the body, the project  
may lead to new treatments for  
prostate cancer.

CG1111 A Prof louis Rendina, 
university of Sydney, NSW

very few options exist in the treatment 
and imaging of advanced prostate 
cancer, and the demand for new, 
tumour-specific drugs that can 

target malignant prostate cancer is 
increasing. this project will investigate 
the possibility of using a completely 
new class of drug for the targeting of a 
protein known as tspo which is found 
in high abundance in prostate tumour 
cells and it also plays several important 
roles in the progression of the disease.

CG1511 A Prof Ross Hannan, 
university of melbourne, VIC

despite advances in diagnostic and 
treatment strategies for prostate 
cancer, there is urgent need for new 
therapeutic approaches that improve 
survival and even cure the disease. 
the group has developed a completely 
new strategy for the treatment of 
cancer based on disruption of the 
cellular mechanisms that control 
protein synthesis. in collaboration with 
a drug company, dr hannan and  
co have developed the world’s first  
small molecule selective inhibitor  

(cX-5461) of this process. this project 
aims to establish the efficacy of these 
inhibitors to treat prostate cancer in  
a pre-clinical setting. 

CG1611 A Prof Wayne Phillips, 
university of melbourne, VIC

Metastatic prostate cancer is 
currently poorly understood and as a 
result there is no known therapeutic 
intervention that can cure prostate 
cancer once it has metastasized. 
activation of the pi3K signalling 
cascade is frequently activated in 
human primary prostate tumours 
and is almost always deregulated in 
metastatic prostate cancers. the aim 
of this project is to understand the 
role of pi3K pathway activation in the 
biology of prostate tumour formation 
and metastasis and to develop a novel 
pre-clinical model for generating and 
testing new therapeutic strategies for 
the treatment of prostate cancer.

CATEGORY 3 

Movember New Directions Development Awards

NDDA1311 Prof Ian davis,  
ludwig Institute for Cancer  
Research, VIC

prostate cancer is known to depend on 
male sex hormones but it also relies 
on other hormones including female 
sex hormones, which are also present 
in men. the effects of these hormones 
can have important effects on how the 
cancer behaves. prof. davis will use 
a novel scanning technology called 
pet to study how one of these female 
sex hormones attaches to prostate 
cancer cells in the test tube as well as 
in animal experiments. this could lead 
to better ways of scanning for prostate 
cancer in the future and might also 
suggest new ways of treating it.

NDDA1511 Prof daniel galvao,  
Edith Cowan university, WA

the presence of bone metastases 
has excluded participation of cancer 
patients in exercise programs because 
of concerns of bone fragility fracture. 
however, this group of patients often 
have developed significant physical 
impairments from prior and continuing 
hormone treatment that is increased 
by subsequent and more intensive 
interventions such as chemotherapy. 
this project will determine the safety 
and efficacy of a tailored exercise 
program in prostate cancer patients 
with bone metastases.

NDDA1811 dr Elizabeth Williams, 
monash Institute of medical 
Research, VIC

once prostate cancer progresses 
from localised disease it is essentially 
incurable. dr Williams will identify 
differences between cancers that 
only have a short response to 
anti-androgen therapy and those that 
will have prolonged response. this 
is will provide evidence to underpin 
the development of new therapies for 
advanced prostate cancer.
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2011	Annual	Funding	Round	(continued)

researcH

CATEGORY 4 

Movember Equipment Grants 

EG0311 dr luc Furic,  
monash university, VIC

to accelerate validation of new 
potential biomarkers and to assess the 
efficacy of new compounds to fight 
prostate cancer it is necessary to have 
a consistent imaging analysis platform 
that allows comparisons between 
samples and the capacity to quantitate 
rapidly changes in molecular markers. 
dr furic and other investigators at 
Monash university are aiming to 
purchase an aperio scanscope cs 
(digital slide scanner) with operating 
software and server.

EG0711 Prof Robert Newton,  
Edith Cowan university, WA

exercise is now well established 
as a medicine for prevention and 
management of prostate cancer.  
for example, men with existing 
prostate cancer who are physically 
active have a 49% lower risk of dying 
from any cause and 61% lower risk of 
dying from their prostate cancer. the 
actigraph system is the gold standard 
for measurement of physical activity 
and will provide a valuable research 
tool to evaluate the effectiveness 
of programs designed to increase 

physical activity in prostate cancer 
patients. prof newton is aiming to 
purchase an actigraph physical 
activity Monitoring system, which  
he will share with prof galvao and 
others in the course of an already 
funded project.

CATEGORY 5 

Cancer Australia Priority-driven Collaborative Cancer Research Scheme (PdCCRS)

1029901 Prof Robert Newton,  
Edith Cowan university, WA

pharmaceutical suppression of 
testosterone is increasingly being 
used for treatment of prostate 
cancer. however, side effects include 
bone loss, increased body fat, loss 
of muscle, depression, distress and 
reduced quality of life. this project 
will determine if initiating exercise 
therapy at the same time as hormone 
therapy can reduce if not prevent 
these toxicities, ultimately resulting in 
reduced morbidity and mortality for 
men with prostate cancer.

1032970 dr grant Buchanan 
Freemasons Foundation Centre  
for mens Health, SA

the prostate consists of ductal 
epithelial cells embedded in a 
supportive matrix. new evidence 
suggests that changes in the 
supportive matrix are a major 
component of prostate cancer 
progression. this project will 
investigate the prostatic structural 
matrix as a means of earlier diagnosis 
of prostate cancer progression and 
new ways to approach therapy.

$4.55m
funding allocated to  
15 RESEARCH gRANTS

for 2011 – 2014
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From its inception in 2007, the PCFA Movember partnership has achieved some 
significant outcomes for prostate cancer in Australia. Most significantly, PCFA’s Research 
Program has evolved to being recognised as a world-class program that supports the very 
best Australian research into prostate cancer. 

in the last five years, through a 
competitive peer review process, and 
clear funding strategy, the program 
has awarded more than $32M to 
136 projects nationwide of which 57 
remain active.

to date, the research program has 
delivered the following outcomes: 

•  funding has resulted in a high 
level of innovation and increased 
australian prostate cancer research 
profile. novel research approaches 
towards a vaccine that teaches our 
immune system to fight cancer is 
successfully being conducted at 
the Mater institute by dr Kristin 
radford and will soon enter clinical 
trials. a novel concept developed 
by associate professor Martin 
lackmann at Monash university has 
led to the discovery of an antibody 
based drug which has now entered 
clinical trials. these research 
projects are showing great potential 
for improved treatment options for 
men with prostate cancer.

•  the increased profile of prostate 
cancer research nationally and 
internationally has helped to 
ensure that prostate cancer 
research has a place on the policy 
agenda and raises community and 
philanthropic awareness. professor 
Mary haines and her team at the 
sax institute are currently working 
towards improving evidence based 
care for locally advanced prostate 
cancer via a randomised phased 
trial. the results of this study will 
be of immediate use to ensure men 
with high risk prostate cancer will 
more quickly receive appropriate 
evidence based cancer care.

•  the availability of seed funding has 
increased research capacity that 
might otherwise remain immature. 
Movember young investigator 
luke selth at dame roma Mitchell 
laboratories has identified 
micrornas that are novel markers 
of prostate cancer and is now 
testing whether these markers can 
distinguish between aggressive 
and insignificant prostate cancer. 
this will be a great step forward 
in improving the diagnosis and 
subsequent appropriate treatment 
of the disease.

•  undertaking prostate cancer 
research in australia means results 
can be readily applied locally. 
results obtained from prof daniel 
galvao’s research at the edith 
cowan university has facilitated 
the use of exercise as an important 
strategy to mitigate treatment side 
effects and improve the quality of 
life in australian prostate cancer 
survivors. prof galvao is currently 
conducting one of the largest 
clinical trials that focuses on the 
exercise benefits in prostate cancer 
patients undergoing long-term 
androgen deprivation therapy. 

With the support of Movember our 
quest for more research and discovery 
will continue until we achieve our 
shared goal of reducing the impact of 
prostate cancer on the community and 
changing the face of men’s health.

Movember	Partnership

researcH programs

“PCFA’s	Research	
Program	has	evolved	to	
being	recognised	as	a	
world-class	program	that	
supports	the	very	best	
Australian	research	into	 
prostate	cancer.”

pcfa would like to recognise the 
Movember foundation as a key funder 
of its national research program and 
national prostate cancer specialist 
nursing service
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Rodney	Lowe
Prostate Cancer Ambassador 

and	Evita	Lowe
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aWareness programs

The expansion of awareness and education activities at PCFA since January 2012 has 
eventuated in a revised structure. This new structure will ensure sustainability as well  
as directions for evidence based resource development and intersectoral collaborations.

Awareness	and	Education	
Committee

this year, the structure of pcfa 
awareness and education committee 
was revised under the chairmanship of 
dr david Malouf. subsequently, formal 
requests were made to key medical 
colleges and medical craft groups to 
recommend a representative from 
their organisation for the newly formed 
pcfa Medical advisory committee. 

PCFA	Medical	Advisory	
Committee

We are delighted to have the following 
representatives on the pcfa Medical 
advisory committee:

•  Medical oncology australia  
– dr Elizabeth Hovey

•  urological society australia  
and new Zealand (usanZ)  
– Professor mark Frydenberg 

•  royal australian college of general 
practitioners (racgp)  
– Professor Christopher del mar

•  the royal college of pathologists 
– Associate Professor Paul 
macKenzie

•  royal australian and new Zealand 
college of radiologists, faculty of 
radiation oncology genito-urinary 
group (frogg) – Associate 
Professor Scott Williams

pcfa appreciates and values the 
assistance of these organisations  
and individuals. 

Awareness	and	 
Education	Team

the creation of an awareness and 
education team in pcfa means a 
stronger focus on addressing:

•  community and health professional 
education about prostate cancer

•  community engagement activities 
that meet international and 
national best practice standards

•  the production of relevant and 
evidence-based resources for 
diverse groups in the community 
affected by prostate cancer 

•  collaborative projects with other 
agencies and organisations 
concerned about increasing 
awareness and education about 
personal, family, and community 
issues that result after a prostate 
cancer diagnosis.

PCFA	Ambassador	Program

this year, several pieces of research 
were conducted to improve the 
sustainability and effectiveness of the 
pcfa ambassador program.  
the research covered:

•  ambassadors’ experiences of  
the program 

•  experiences of organisations who 
engaged pcfa ambassadors 

•  analysis of the local government 
areas across australia with highest 
numbers of men in 45+ aged group 

•  mapping the local government 
analysis with prevalence of prostate 
cancer and locations of pcfa 
ambassadors and support groups. 

the research conducted resulted in 
a revision of administrative support 
structures for the pcfa ambassador 
program, the establishment of 
strategic priorities for increasing 
the number of ambassadors, and 
the development of a presentation 
series giving both ambassadors and 
organisations more choice. 

Cancer	Australia	Funding

the importance of cancer australia 
funding for the development of 
evidence-based information resources 
over the next two years for younger 
men with prostate cancer, men with 
advanced prostate cancer, partners 
and carers of men with prostate 
cancer, gay and bisexual men, 
aboriginal and torres strait islander 
men and men from culturally and 
linguistically diverse groups means 
a broader suite of resources are in 
development incorporating strategic 
approaches to dissemination. 

a report completed by Zest health 
strategies delineated a quality 
appraisal of current resources, and 
provided recommendations based 
on the results from interviews and 
focus groups with relevant consumer 
groups and health professionals about 
information and resource needs. 

in addition, pcfa expanded this work 
further by commissioning research 
projects such as an audit of prostate 
cancer resource needs through la trobe 
university, and a consultation with 
aboriginal and torres strait islander 
men conducted by Mibbinbah limited 
(a health promotion organisation 
working with aboriginal and torres 
strait islander men across australia). 
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Advocacy	Structures	For	 
New	Treatments

the cost of many treatments for 
prostate cancer can be unaffordable 
for many families. the importance 
of obtaining listings for treatments 
through relevant schemes such as 
the pharmaceutical benefits scheme 
(pbs) assists men, their families, and 
health care providers. 

this year, pcfa has been developing a 
strategic focus for advocacy activities 
with members of the awareness 
and education committee, the pcfa 
Medical advisory committee, the 
awareness and education team, our 
consumer network of support group 
leaders/members and ambassadors 
working collaboratively on advocacy 
projects with key government, non-
government and private organisations.

Pride	in	Diversity

pcfa became a member of the 
employer based organisation pride 
in diversity and participated in the 
australian Workplace equality index 
for the first time as one of the first 
not-for-profits to participate. this 
provides the opportunity for pcfa 
to review achievements annually in 
relation to workplace equality.

Tomorrow	Counts
in october, 2012 the launch of 
the tomorrow counts website 
and book occurred at parliament 
house, canberra. this project 
was a collaboration between 
pcfa, Janssen-cilag, and ethical 
strategies. it raises awareness 
about the importance of ‘tomorrow’ 
in the lives of those affected by 
prostate cancer. the website at 
www.tomorrowcounts.com.au 
encourages men, their family and 
friends to write their own stories, 
upload their own videos and 
photos as they tell about their own 
experiences with prostate cancer and 
why tomorrow counts. this project 
provides opportunity for those affected 
by prostate cancer to communicate 
their experiences to others.

Movember	Australian	
Survivorship	Action	Plan	
(ASAP)

pcfa had unique opportunities this 
year to collaborate with Movember 
on the development of its global 
survivorship action plan by attending 
the meeting of Movember’s 
international partners in los angeles, 
and through collaborative workshops 
in Melbourne to develop relevant 
and sustainable australian projects 
to assist people affected by prostate 
cancer. the contacts made at this 
meeting have continued to flourish  
as resources and project ideas are 
shared across centres and services  
in other countries.

What’s	Next

this year the focus has been on 
developing the platform for pcfa 
awareness and education activities 
to achieve sustainable community 
engagement. the focus for next year 
will be the development and roll out  
of a wide range of evidence-based and 
understandable resources funded by 
the australian government through 
cancer australia to diverse groups 
of men, their families and friends. 
this will also broaden the reach of 
pcfa activities through expanding 
the range of partner organisations 
in government, non-government, 
not-for-profit and community sectors 
with whom we will collaborate. 
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Years	of	Progress	in	Prostate	Cancer

This year PCFA celebrated the 10th anniversary of its Community Attitudes Survey,  
with the publication of a report entitled ‘Research,	Awareness,	Support:	Ten	Years	 
of	Progress	in	Prostate	Cancer’. 

the launch of the survey results and 
publication was a significant milestone 
for pcfa as it showcased the impact 
the organisation has had in driving 
awareness and understanding of 
prostate cancer in the community.  
it is also a measure of how things  
have changed over the last decade  
and where we need to focus our 
efforts going forward. 

the survey revealed that australian 
men see prostate cancer as the single 
most important health issue they  
face and one of the top five health  
issues for the community at large.  
We were extremely pleased to see 
that pcfa’s efforts to raise awareness 
and knowledge of prostate cancer are 
paying off with a 12% increase in the 
percentage of men who feel informed 
about the disease over the past decade. 

awareness and knowledge of the psa 
test has also increased with more than 
40% of men now being tested every 
year. however, we also found that 
almost 40% of men believe the advice 
they receive about testing is confusing. 
the need for clear and consistent 
advice about testing, supported by 
every medical college and all other 
interested parties, is evident. 

“We	found	that	almost	one	
quarter	of	men	who	have	
been	diagnosed	with,	or	
are	undergoing	further	
investigation	for	prostate	
cancer	contacted	a	support	
organisation	and	found	it	to	
be	a	very	valuable	source	of	
information	and	support.”	

pleasingly, prostate cancer support 
groups were very highly rated by 
participants in the survey, with an 
average satisfaction score of 8 out of 
10. however, we also found that men 
lack knowledge of support services 
and need health professionals to 
be more active in guiding them to 
appropriate information and support. 

Our thanks to Bayer who generously  
sponsored the report and launch event. 

Left: PCFA Chairman 
David Sandoe OAM, 
CEO Dr Anthony 
Lowe with The Hon. 
Melinda Pavey, 
New South Wales 
Parliamentary 
Secretary for 
Regional Health 
at the launch of 
the Community 
Attitudes Survey at 
the State Library of 
New South Wales.

aWareness programs
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support programs

This has been an exciting year at PCFA with the organisation experiencing significant 
change and development, particularly in the Affiliated Support Groups Network. 

We grew from 110 to 135 pcfa 
affiliated support groups, the support 
and advocacy committee to the 
national board was restructured 
into the national support groups 
committee, a new national Manager 
of support groups was appointed 
in august 2011 and soon thereafter, 
the $3.9 million funding agreement 
with the federal government through 
cancer australia was signed in 
september 2011. roughly, a third of  
the funding agreement resourcing 
was specified to ‘improve and grow’ 
the network of pcfa affiliated 
support groups.

Working alongside pcfa affiliated 
support groups whilst they continued 
their dedicated work supporting men, 
partners and families affected by 
prostate cancer in local communities 
across the country, pcfa staff and 
volunteers commenced work on 
building evidence based practice and 
training resources for affiliated groups. 
With assistance from the federal 
government funding through cancer 
australia; pcfa has been able to boost 
its support for affiliated groups by 
placing a support group and outreach 
program coordinator (sg&o) in 
the Wa, Qld, vic/tas and nsW/
act chapters. (central chapter is 
scheduled for placement early  
next year.) 

since their appointment, the sg&o 
coordinators have been working 
closely with the network of affiliated 
support groups in their regions to 
commence the creation, development 
and delivery of evidence based training 
and support to the network of group 
leaders. this work aims to build on the 
already existing skills and experience 
of affiliated group leaders. the grant 
has enabled significant capacity for 

the organisation and means pcfa  
can provide another layer of support 
and professionalism to supportive care 
delivery to those affected by prostate 
cancer nationally. 

We have reached some key strategic 
milestones this year – strong 
foundational work upon which to build. 
a population based needs analysis was 
conducted to assist in identifying,  
by local government area, where men 
are in the country and where men 
are that have been diagnosed with 
prostate cancer. this body of work 
will help us to target our efforts and 
services to areas where more men, 
carers and families are affected by  
the disease.

We have collaborated with our 
academic peers to enable a survey 
to be utilised in communicating with 
our medical and health professional 
colleagues about the merits and 
strengths of peer led and community 
led prostate cancer support groups. 
the support group leader survey will 
be finalised in september 2012. 

also, key elements of support group 
governance, such as the affiliation 
agreement, volunteer policies, support 
group leader handbook and support 
group leader training packages have 
all been researched and entered the 
first phase of development. these 
resources will all be finalised by the 
end of 2012. 

it has been a year of important 
progress and has laid the foundation 
to continue to develop our evidenced 
based approach to strengthening and 
extending the impact of our affiliated 
support group network.

“Roughly,	a	third	
of	the	Funding	
Agreement	resourcing	
was	specified	to	
‘Improve	and	Grow’	
the	network	of	PCFA	
Affiliated	Support	
Groups.”
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support programs

This year PCFA launched a high intensity national advertising campaign that will promote 
the availability and benefits of PCFA’s information, education resources and affiliated 
support groups. 

starting at the end of July 2012, and 
running two years, the campaign 
features a4 posters and take-away 
cards in public conveniences right 
across australia. 

as part of the national campaign, the 
area around 20 support groups will 
be heavily targeted for a trial period to 
see if this is an effective way to change 
men’s helps seeking behaviours. the 
20 support groups were chosen at 
random to cover a cross section of 
urban, suburban and rural locations. 
pcfa set up a dedicated 1300 number 
for the campaign and phones are 
manned by experienced volunteers 
drawn from pcfa’s affiliated support 
group network. the aim is to ensure 
that everyone who calls the 1300 
number will speak directly to someone 
who understands from firsthand 

experience the issues faced by men 
and their families affected by prostate 
cancer. the volunteers will put callers 
in touch with their local support group. 

at the time of writing, the campaign 
has achieved some significant 
awareness milestones in distributing 
over 50,000 takeaway cards detailing 
how pcfa support services could  
be accessed.

We will be carefully evaluating the 
success of the campaign from focus 
group testing the advertisements, 
through to analysis of call volumes, 
nature of enquiries and ultimately 
attendance at support groups. the 
evaluation will assist us in refining a 
model that can be used more broadly 
in future. 

“The	main	aim	of	
the	campaign	is	to	
encourage	men	and	
their	families	affected	
by	prostate	cancer	to	
take	action	and	get	in	
touch	with	their	local	
support	group.”
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Max	Gardner	Award	
Recipients	2011-2012
daryl hyland

Max shub

John stead

PCFA	Affiliated	Support	Group	Network

CENTRAl AuSTRAlIA (SA/NT) 
AFFIlIATEd gRouPS 

adelaide hills pcsg

alice springs pcsg

barossa pcsg

darwin prostate support awareness 
group – prosper

gawler pcsg

limestone coast pcsg

Mclaren districts pcsg

Mitcham pcsg

Murray bridge pcsg

pcs – city of onkaparinga group

port pirie pcsg

proshelp – Katherine pcsg

prostate (cancer) support awareness 
adelaide group

prostate cancer action group  
(s.a.) inc.

riverland pcsg

Whyalla pcsg

NSW/ACT AFFIlIATEd gRouPS 

bathurst pcsg

broken hill pcsg

central coast pcsg

cessnock pcsg

clarence valley pcsg

coffs harbour pcsg

concord pcsg

dubbo pcsg

dural pcsg

gloucester pcsg

goulburn & district pcsg

great lakes pcsg

griffith pcsg

hastings prostate cancer  
support network

illawarra pcsg

inverell pcsg

Monaro pcsg

Mudgee pcsg

nepean/blue Mountains pcsg inc.

newcastle/hunter Mater pcsg

northern beaches pcsg

northlakes central coast pcsg

orange pcsg

prostate cancer support group  
act region

raymond terrace pcsg

royal north shore hospital 
cansupport pcsg

royal prince alfred hospital pcsg 
(day group)

royal prince alfred hospital pcsg 
(evening group)

shine a light group for  
gay/bisexual Men

shoalhaven pcsg

southern highlands pcsg

st george pcsg

st vincents pcsg

sydney adventist hospital prostate 
cancer support network 
– educational presentations  
(evening group)

sydney adventist hospital prostate 
cancer support network 
– facilitated group discussion  
(day group)

tamworth pcsg

tomaree pcsg

Wagga Wagga pcsg

Warialda community support group

Westmead pcsg

Wisemans ferry cancer  
support group

younger Men central coast pcsg
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support programs

Qld AFFIlIATEd gRouPS 

beenleigh & districts pcsg

brisbane partners of Men With 
prostate cancer

brisbane prostate cancer  
support network

bundaberg & district pcsg

capricorn coast prostate support  
& awareness group

central gold coast pcsg

central Qld prostate support & 
awareness group

far north Queensland (cairns) pcsg

fnQ (cairns) partners prostate cancer 
support group

gladstone & district pcsg

glass house country pcsg

gold coast north prostate cancer 
support & awareness group

gold coast prostate cancer partners 
support group

gympie & district pcsg

hervey bay pcsg

ipswich pcsg

Mackay & district pcsg

Maryborough pcsg

north burnett pcsg

north West Qld pcsg

northern rivers evening pcsg

northern rivers day pcsg

northern tablelands pcsg

prostate awareness twin town  
& tweed coast

Qld advanced pcsg  
(telephone group)

redcliff pcsg

sunshine coast pcsg

toowoomba pcsg

townsville pcsg

Whitsunday prostate awareness  
& support group

VIC/TAS AFFIlIATEd gRouPS

albury Wodonga pcsg

ararat & district pcsg

bairnsdale prostate & partners  
support group

ballarat & district pcsg

bass coast pcsg

bayside pcsg

bendigo & districts pcsg

devonport pcsg

diamond valley pcsg

eastern shore pcsg

essendon pcsg 

frankston & district psg

gay Melbourne prostate cancer group

geelong prostate support group

greater launceston pcsg

hobart pcsg

Kerang & districts pcsg

Kyabram & district prostate  
support group

latrobe valley prostate support group

launceston pcsg

Melmarsh pcsg

Mornington peninsula prostate 
support group

north West tasmania pcsg

orbost pcsg

pcsg bellarine peninsula

prostate cancer partners sg  
bentleigh bayside

prostate heidelberg

prostate Melbourne support group

prostate support group Warrnambool

prostate Waverley

ringwood pcsg

shepparton & district pcsg

st arnaud pcsg

sunraysia prostate support group

swan hill prostate support group

Westgate region pcsg

yarra valley pcsg

WA AFFIlIATEd gRouPS

albany pcsg

blackwood districts pcsg

bunbury district pcsg

busselton pca&sg

citiplace advanced pcsg

fremantle pcsg

geraldton pcsg

prostate cancer support  
association inc

southsiders pcsg

Western suburbs pcsg
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Royal Darwin 
Hospital, NT

Townsville 
Hospital, QLD

Mater Adult  
Hospital, QLD

Tamworth 
Regional 
Hospital, NSW

Westmead 
 

Hospital, NSW

Canberra 
Hospital, ACT

Launceston 
Hospital, TAS

Latrobe Regional 
Hospital, VIC

Bendigo 
Health, VIC

Royal Adelaide
Hospital, SA

Austin  
Health, VIC

Hollywood  
Private Hospital,  
WA

Royal Hobart
Hospital, TAS

Prostate	Cancer	Specialist	
Nursing	Service

support

“The	Specialist	Nursing	
Service	is	already	having	a	
significant	impact	at	a	local	
level	with	already	over	2000	
contacts	with	patients	being	
recorded	since	the	service	
commenced	earlier	this	year.”

13 SPECIALIST 
NURSES
 PLACED AROUND 

AUSTRALIA

Available for those affected by
All STAgES oF PRoSTATE CANCER

locations oF tHe First 13 specialist nurses

pcfa would like to recognise 
the Movember foundation as 

a key funder of its national 
research program and 

national prostate cancer 
specialist nursing service
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programssupport

May 2012 saw the official launch of the Prostate Cancer Specialist Nursing Service. 
Proudly funded by The Movember Foundation with additional funding support through 
Wyllie Fellowship, this innovative program is the first of its kind in Australia. 

the program has placed 13 prostate 
cancer specialist nurses in all states 
and territories across australia as  
part of this three year pilot program.  
pcfa provided funds directly to the  
host hospitals who were successful  
in their applications to participate in 
this program.

support generously provided by 
Qantas enabled pcfa to bring the 
nurses together from all across the 
country for their initial training in their 
new roles. this two day event was 
held at the Melbourne convention and 
exhibition centre and provided training 
to the nurses on all aspects of prostate 
cancer and specialist nursing care. 
We are grateful to the clinicians and 
experts in the field who kindly donated 
their time to participate in this training. 

We are also grateful to abbott 
australasia and aMs for supporting 
the event. the event offered the 
nurses a forum to learn from 
recognised experts in the field of 
prostate cancer care as well as the 
opportunity meet their peers, and now 
feel established as part of a national 
team. pcfa is maintaining this 
commitment to support the nurses’ 
throughout the pilot with a structured 
professional development program 
which includes mentorship, team 
teleconferences and ongoing training.

the specialist nurses are available for 
those affected by all stages of prostate 
cancer, from diagnosis onwards. they 
provide men with a central point of 
contact and can help men and their 
carers navigate through the large 

number of cancer services, as they 
work in partnership with both clinical 
and supportive care staff in their 
locales. they also provide men with 
reliable information about all aspects 
of prostate cancer care and are 
helpful to those making decision over 
their treatment plans and also those 
managing the effects of treatment.

this specialist nursing service is 
already having a significant impact at 
a local level with already over 2000 
contacts with patients being recorded 
since the service commenced earlier 
this year.

annual report 2011-2012 31



32

Trish	Husband
Prostate Cancer Specialist Nurse,  
Townsville Cancer Centre, 
Townsville Hospital, QLD
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support programs

PCFA	Nursing	Grants	and	Awards

Barry Collins Travel Scholarships

the recipients of the 2011/12 barry 
collins travel internships were 
deborah stokes and sharon stephen. 

deborah is a clinical nurse specialist 
at the William buckland radiotherapy 
centre at alfred health, victoria. 
deborah used her grant to travel  
to the united Kingdom to visit the 
urology department at guys and  
st thomas’ hospital, london.  
there she spent time with the nurse 
practitioner team learning more about 
nurse led clinics which are aimed 
at improving access to care for those 
affected by prostate cancer. 

sharon stephen is a continence 
clinical nurse consultant at st John 
of god hospital in perth, Wa. sharon 
travelled to the peter Maccallum 
cancer centre in Melbourne where 
she spent time in theatre observing 
laparoscopic surgery, observed 
practice in the nurse led clinics and 
also had the opportunity to visit the 
australian cancer survivorship and 
information centre. this experience 
has enabled sharon to reflect on  
her own practice and improve the  
care she delivers in her role in  
Western australia. 

Nurses Education grants

ian henderson, from royal hobart 
hospital, tasmania and lisa ferri, 
from hollywood private hospital in 
perth, Western australia, were the 
recipients of the 2011/12 nurses 
education grants. both nurses used 
these grants to undertake a program of 
study in prostate nursing care, through 
a correspondence course delivered by 
latrobe university. both ian and lisa 
have progressed since undertaking this 
study and now are both employed as 
prostate cancer specialist nurses in 
their respective hospitals as part of the 
pcfa program. 

Nurses Conference grants

pcfa was also proud to support 
nurses in the general community to 
further their knowledge in prostate 
cancer care, by providing 20 full time 
registrations to the 2011 australian 
prostate cancer conference at 
the Melbourne convention and 
exhibition centre. this annual event 
brings together experts in the field 
from across australia to discuss the 
management of prostate cancer. 
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Since its humble beginnings in Melbourne, Australia, 
Movember has grown to become a truly global movement 
inspiring millions of Mo Bros and Mo Sistas to participate.

today, Movember runs official 
campaigns in 21 countries around 
the world, including australia, new 
Zealand, the usa, canada, the uK, 
south africa, ireland, finland, the 
netherlands, spain, denmark, norway, 
belgium and the czech republic, 
singapore and hong Kong. 

in addition, Movember is aware of Mo 
bros and Mo sistas supporting the 
men’s health cause across the globe, 
from russia to dubai , rio de Janeiro to 
Mumbai, and everywhere in between.

no matter the country or city, 
Movember will continue to work 
to change established habits and 
attitudes men have about their health, 
to educate men about the health 
risks they face, and to act on that 
knowledge, thereby increasing the 
chances of early detection, diagnosis 
and effective treatment.

in 2011, over 854,000 Mo bros and 
Mo sistas around the world got on 
board, raising aud $124 million for 
men’s health, specifically prostate 
cancer and male mental health.

big steps have been taken towards 
changing attitudes and habits relating 
to men’s health around the world  
but there is still much to be done  
to catch up with the women’s  
health movement. 

via the moustache, Movember aims to 
fulfill its vision of having an everlasting 
impact on the face of men’s health, 
by continuing to spark conversation 
and spread awareness of men’s health 
each year.

during November each 
year, the global community 
unites to raise vital funds and 
awareness for men’s health, 
specifically prostate cancer 
and male mental health.

  854,000 global 
participants in 2011

  AUD $124 million raised 
worldwide in 2011

  Global movement 
across 21 countries

  Global participants 
almost doubled since 
2010!

 au.movember.com

 /MovemberAustralia

community partnersHips

Movember	–	A	Global	Movement

36



community partnersHips community participation

“Movember	will	continue	
to	work	to	change	
established	habits	and	
attitudes	men	have	
about	their	health,	to	
educate	men	about	
the	health	risks	they	
face,	and	to	act	on	that	
knowledge,	thereby	
increasing	the	chances	
of	early	detection,	
diagnosis	and	effective	
treatment.”
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The 2011 national Big Aussie Barbie campaign continued 
to attract great support across community and corporate 
Australia with more than 500 barbies registered for 
the month of September, International Prostate Cancer 
Awareness month.

the cheeky campaign creative featuring 
the slogan ‘Keep Your Sausage Sizzling’ 
was driven by a television commercial 
featuring australian icon dame edna 
at the barbie. the drive behind the 
new campaign was to encourage 
the community to respond to dame 
edna’s call to host a barbie, raise funds 
for pcfa and most importantly start 
a conversation about men’s health, 
specifically prostate cancer. 

With the continued support of major 
sponsor commonwealth bank, the 
campaign kicked off on september 
1st with a bold attempt at taking the 
guinness World record for the longest 
period of uninterrupted barbecuing. 
starting at 7am on the thursday 
morning, in the shadow of sydney’s 
beautiful st Mary’s cathedral the 
national launch of the campaign 
continued non-stop for twenty six 
and a half hours until 9:30am the 

following morning, breaking the record 
for the longest bbQ in the world. 
the event provided a great platform 
to build awareness and support for 
the campaign as well as providing 
a wonderful vehicle for sponsor, 
volunteer and staff engagement. 

pcfa state offices followed the 
national launch with state based 
launch activities to drive awareness 
and participation in the campaign. 
Melbourne’s lord Mayor robert 
doyle helped launch the campaign 
in federation square which drew 
widespread media coverage including 
channel 10, 3aW, sbs and sky news.

bunnings Warehouse also got behind 
the campaign offering support groups 
the opportunity to fundraise and build 
awareness at local store barbies across 
the country. together bunnings and 
support group barbie activities raised 
more than $60,000 for the campaign.

September is the International 
Prostate Cancer Awareness 
month, and the month 
Australia unites to host 
Barbies to raise funds and 
awareness for PCFA.

  500 Barbies registered

  AUD $600,000 raised

  Guinness World Record 
record for the longest 
BBQ in the world!

  16% increase in 
fundraising from 
previous year

 bigaussiebarbie.com.au

 /pcfa1
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Big	Aussie	Barbie	2011	– 
‘Keep	Your	Sausage	Sizzling’
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our thanks to the following 
organisations for their 
generous contribution to the 
2011 campaign:

major Sponsor:

Campaign Supporters:

Macquarie radio network

Mitchell & partners

bunnings

barbecues galore

val Morgan

pirtek

Qantas

farmoz

community partnersHips

“We	participated	in	the	Big	
Aussie	Barbie	for	the	first	
time	in	2011.We	wanted	
to	show	support	for	one	of	
our	staff	members	who	had	
suffered	from	prostate	cancer,	
and	as	butchers,	we	know	
how	to	host	a	great	BBQ!

“We	held	the	BBQ	at	our	shop	
in	Westfield	North	Rocks	with	
a	BBQ	inside	the	centre	and	
outside	in	the	car	park.	We	
were	overwhelmed	with	the	
support	from	Westfield,	local	
members	of	Prostate	Cancer	
Foundation	of	Australia	and	
the	public.

“We	loved	the	website	
tracker	and	set	a	goal	of	
$5000.	We	had	a	lot	of	fun	
posting	photos	and	sharing	
our	growing	donations.	
We	exceeded	our	donation	
expectations	and	had	a	ball	
doing	so!”

BeeF Bullion, nortH rocKs

the campaign also attracted some 
well-known australian personalities 
including celebrity chef ben 
o’donoghue, angry anderson, actor 
les hill, cricketer nathan bracken and 
darryl brohman from the footy show, 
who himself had a personal experience 
with prostate cancer. 

the results of the september 
campaign were the best to date with 
a 16% increase in fundraising on 
the previous year, raising more than 
$600,000 for pcfa’s programs. this 
included a very generous contribution 
of sponsorship and staff fundraising 

of $200,000 plus significant 
donations of food to support the 
launch activity from the major sponsor 
commonwealth bank. staff around the 
country raised funds and awareness 
through branch based barbies as well 
as cook-off with celebrity chef,  
ben o‘donoghue.

pcfa would like to acknowledge 
the tremendous ongoing support of 
commonwealth bank. their support 
of the campaign has been vital to the 
big aussie barbie’s success, helping 
to drive awareness and engagement 
amongst the community.

ButcHers KnoW HoW to Host great BBQs

community participation
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In 2009 Pirtek approached PCFA with a concept that 
would not only see the development of the nation’s largest 
fishing challenge but would also see a fundraising initiative 
returning more than $100,000 annually to PCFA in just 
four years. 

pirtek is australia’s leading provider of 
hydraulic and industrial hose products 
and services and pcfa has been 
supported through a range of activities 
by pirtek since 2009 with the fishing 
challenge being specifically developed 
to provide an ongoing fundraising and 
awareness platform for pcfa. 

With estimates of more than 120,000 
men in australia currently living with 
prostate cancer, and a workforce and 
customer base in a predominantly 
industrial male environment pirtek 
identified that an association with 
pcfa would be a good fit for them – 
the challenge was to make the activity 
self-sustaining and capable of growth 
without distracting significantly from 
their core business. 

developed by racing and fishing 
identity Michael guest and his wife 
lisa, the challenge is now an annual 
event in april each year with people 
across australia encouraged to go 
“fishing to help fight prostate cancer”. 
it attracts mums, dads, kids and 
grandparents – chasing species from 
golden perch to barramundi in each 
state and territory. competitors catch, 
photograph and send the photo to the 
website for judging and to be eligible 
for the prize pool. 

the event has grown incrementally 
since 2009. the 2012 pirtek national 
fishing challenge held on sunday april 
15 attracted more than 6500 anglers 
with a prize pool valued at more than 
$130,000 from sponsors including 

community partnersHips

Pirtek

An annual event in April, 
people across Australia go 
fishing to help fight prostate 
cancer. With a $20 entry fee, 
competitors catch, photograph 
and submit their photo for 
judging and for a chance  
to win prizes.

  6,500 anglers in 2012

  AUD $130,000 raised

  Pirtek provided over 
$400,000 to PCFA 
over 4 years

 pirtekfishingchallenge.com.au

 /Pirtekfishing
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Pirtek

evinrude, berkley, lowrance, roman, 
bcf, ocean Kayak and bla. the full 
entry fee of $20 for each competitor 
was generously donated by pirtek to 
pcfa for a total donation of $130,000. 

pirtek also supports pcfa in other 
areas of their operations. as the 
naming rights sponsor of the 
parramatta eels in the national rugby 
league, pirtek took the opportunity 
during the match against sydney 
roosters in august 2012 to not only 
present the cheque, but also aid in the 
awareness push of pcfa by replacing 
its logo on the front of the jersey for 
the match with the pcfa logo. the 
jerseys were also auctioned on-line as 
part of the ongoing fundraising efforts.

the partnership with pcfa is 
supported by pirtek at a national level, 
plus through the 92 strong franchise 
network across the country with 
many of them supporting pcfa’s 
national campaigns like the big aussie 
barbecue and also Movember. 

collectively pirtek’s support has 
provided more than $400,000 
to pcfa over the four years. this 
support is invaluable to pcfa in 
providing critical funding to advance 
vital research, raising awareness and 
provide practical support to men 
diagnosed with prostate cancer and 
their families. pcfa is privileged 
to have such a committed partner 
in pirtek – in engaging their staff, 
customers and the community  

in their fund and awareness initiatives 
they have contributed significantly  
to our outreach and impact in  
the community.

“Pirtek’s	support	is	
invaluable	to	PCFA	in	
providing	critical	funding	
to	advance	vital	research,	
raising	awareness	and	
provide	practical	support	
to	men	diagnosed	with	
prostate	cancer	and	 
their	families.”

community participation
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Community	Fundraising	Highlights

JULY

2011
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City to Surf and Blackmores Running 
Festival – Running For Their lives 

in 2011, two major running events 
in sydney saw fundraisers for pcfa 
through sydney events – the sun 
herald 2011 city2surf presented by 
Westpac and the 2011 blackmores 
running festival, raising more than 
$100,000 for pcfa . 

by reaching out to the pcfa supporter 
community, the number of people 
running for pcfa doubled and 
with support services provided for 
fundraisers through personalised 
engagement and an outreach program, 
fundraising results to pcfa increased 
by more 300% on the previous  
year’s activity. 

pcfa staff attended both events and 
for blackmores recruited 30 volunteers 
to offer powerade and encouragement 
to over 5,000 runners who passed the 
pcfa manned drink station during the 
event , including pcfa runners  
and supporters.

NSW & ACT

Sydney markets Foundation –  
A Fruitful Relationship 

now in its third year of support for 
pcfa, sydney Markets auctioned off 
the first box of mangoes for the season 
to provide support for their charity 
partners. the box of 12 mangoes from 
the northern territory went under 
the hammer at the annual event with 
greengrocers united putting in the 
successful bid of $30,000, and with 
other fundraising activity on the day 
organised by the sydney Markets 
Mango committee, pcfa received 
$23,938.

my Plates Blue Plates  
Campaign launched 

in 2011 nsW roads Minister duncan 
gay announced the pcfa and rta 
blue number plate partnership which 
contributes to helping men and their 
families affected by prostate cancer. 
the partnership between pcfa and 
My plates sees $15 from the sale of 
blue plates and $50 from prestige blue 
plates in nsW donated to the pcfa. 
after a successful first year the rta 
extended the partnership until  
June 30, 2012.

Veolia 

in september veolia offered us the 
opportunity to brand one of their 
buses for the month – the bus was 
used at a number of high profile events 
including the longest bbQ and the 
pirtek parramatta eels match. 

Thank You Supporters

community support for pcfa has 
been evident right across nsW and 
the act with events and initiatives 
raising vital funds and awareness 
through the hard work and support of 
individuals, groups and organisations.

42



community partnersHips

2012

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE

The long Ride 2011

in november 2011 one of pcfa’s 
largest community fundraising events 
set off from all points of the nation 
and set their bikes towards sydney 
for the long ride 2011. this bi annual 
fundraising initiative encourages 
motorbike riders from all over australia 
to join and help make a contribution 
to the community in fighting prostate 
cancer and supporting pcfa. 

With more than 200 riders converging 
on darling harbour at its close , the 
event raised more than $180,000 and 
has become a signature community 
event for pcfa. funds raised through 
the long ride are being directed to 
the development of support services 
for men and their families affected by 
prostate cancer.

PCFA Thanks NSW & ACT Supporters

in March, pcfa was privileged to have 
the use of the residence of the prime 
Minister, Kirribilli house, for the annual 
pcfa nsW and act thank you event. 
the residence provided a spectacular 
setting where pcfa recognised and 
thanked those who have played 
a significant role in supporting its 
work. presentations were made to 
major corporate supporters including 
commonwealth bank, pirtek and 
farmoz. there were also awards for 
community fundraisers and those who 
have contributed to pcfa support 
group development over the years.

Country Women’s Association 
Support for PCFA 

in May, in their 2nd year of significant 
support, the country Women’s 
association of nsW provided to pcfa 
a cheque of $41,385 bringing to a total 
their support for pcfa of $78,385 in 
two years. With the cheque came the 
privilege of pcfa addressing the 700 
nsW cWa delegates at their national 
conference at blacktown to thank them 
for their fundraising efforts over the 
past two years. 

community participation

dragonboat Regatta

a group of prostate cancer survivors 
took part in the dragonboat regatta 
at darling harbour. this annual 
event, organised by dragons abreast 
australia, is a major cancer fundraiser. 
the prostate dragons were sponsored 
in very large part, by pcfa this year.

this is the 4th year in which the 
prostate dragons have taken part in 
the regatta, along with their partners 
and families. the two teams competed 
in four races each and performed very 
well, gaining three 1st places and four 
2nd places in their heats.

a feature of the day was the social 
race between the dragons abreast 
ladies and the prostate dragons.

this year, for the first time, the 
prostate dragons were invited to take 
part in the “flowers on the Water” 
ceremony, held each year to celebrate 
the lives of those who are no longer 
with us. a very moving ceremony, 
hundreds of rose petals were cast 
onto the waters of cockle bay. this 
was a special moment for both breast 
and prostate cancer survivors as they 
joined hands and hearts to pay tribute.
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VIC & TAS

Biggest Ever Blokes lunch

the concept of the biggest ever blokes 
lunch was conceived by a passionate 
pcfa supporter, chris Mcpherson 
(pictured left), in shepparton four years 
ago. What started as one annual event 
each year in shepparton for pcfa has 
now grown to annual lunches across 
rural and regional victoria attended 
by over 3,000 people in shepparton, 
bairnsdale, echuca, bendigo, ballarat 
and baw baw. 

these events raise significant funds 
for pcfa all thanks to the passion and 
dedication of the external organising 
committees, who work tirelessly. 
plans are well underway to extend the 
lunches across victoria, and extending 
in 2013 to tasmania and other parts  
of australia. 

Thank You Supporters

throughout the year community 
supporters hosted a wide range of 
fundraising activities in victoria and 
tasmania. our sincere thanks go  
to the many community fundraisers 
who volunteer their time and energy  
in supporting us. Whilst some 
activities are one off events, many 
have become annual events with 
structured committees 

Many businesses have focused on 
supporting their local community 
and engaging staff and customers 
by supporting pcfa. in victoria and 
tasmania, we extend our sincere 
thanks to all of our corporate 
supporters including drummond golf, 
reece australia, henry bucks, the 
good guys and Mcdermott australia. 
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community participation

Run for dad

With sporting enthusiasts across 
the states, the inaugural run for dad 
took place in bendigo on father’s 
day. Many other amazing individuals 
also participated in the popular run 
Melbourne and Melbourne Marathon 
to raise funds for pcfa. 

The male Bag Ride

in order to raise awareness, 25 guys 
will ride their honda 110cc ex-postie 
bike on an adventure of a lifetime:  
the Male bag ride. pcfa admires the 
committee and team for their efforts 
and training that will enable them to 
set off from perth back to Melbourne 
in one week. 

CmSF golf day

the superlife committee formed by 
the superannuation industry and 
supported by the australian institute 
of superannuation trustees each 
year support pcfa at their annual 
conference and golf day, with over 
1,000 superannuation professionals 
digging deep to raise funds. 

The Charity luncheon group Annual 
dinner and Simons Ball

the charity luncheon group and 
simons ball are annual dinner events 
in Melbourne and hobart respectively 
that continue to dance the night way 
and raise vital funds. 
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Corporate Rugby Tens Carnival

organisers of the hugely successful 
corporate rugby tens have been 
supporting pcfa over the last four 
years. founded ryan Molloy and 
John slater the tournament offers the 
business world a chance to tackle 
their corporate rivals in a round-robin 
competition while raising funds for 
charity partner pcfa.

“We knew after the success of the first 
year that this event was only going 
to go one way. We have got a fair 
few guys who play club rugby so the 
standard is pretty good,’’ ryan Molloy, 
now based in Melbourne, said. “people 
do take it seriously and want to win 
the cup.’”

according to John slater they’re also 
willing to dig deep for the charity 
partner. John and ryan are eyeing 
similar tournaments in sydney and 
Melbourne for 2013. 
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Community	Fundraising	Highlights
QLD

Shag Islet Cruising Yacht Club 
Annual Rendezvous

hundreds of vice commodores 
from all over the world descended 
on the gloucester passage in the 
Whitsundays, to raise money for pcfa. 
sicyc event organiser Ken thackeray 
said he was “blown away by the 
response.” 

“it’s like a phenomenon that’s got a life 
of its own,” Ken said.

a fleet of more than 140 boats 
participated in the event with more 
than 450 people attending the 

“parrots head party” at Montes  
reef resort.

an additional event – a pirate party 
was held at the dingo beach pub, with 
the combined events bringing a huge 

tourist presence to the communities  
of hydeaway bay and dingo beach.

Ken thackeray thanked sicyc’s vice 
commodores for their willingness to 
support pcfa. “they’re just a fantastic 
bunch of people and besides the fact 
they have a good time, they’re very 
willing to put their money to a good 
cause,” he said.

Ken said sicyc would definitely be 
back next year in the last week of 
august “to do it all again.”

“next year we’ll have a polynesian 
festival theme. the event will always 
change – it will grow and grow and 
we’ll be pushing the entertainment 
parametres to make sure it’s an event 
that’s always well-attended by our  
vice commodores,” he said
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Southside Sport and Community 
Club Big Prostate Breakfast

southside sport and community 
club did their bit for prostate cancer 
by raising funds and breaking down 
taboos by holding their annual big 
prostate cancer breakfast, which 
entertains fundraisers and promotes 
awareness of the disease.

on event day all staff work as 
volunteers, entertainers perform free 
of charge, raffle prizes are donated by 
local businesses and even the food 
is kindly donated by suppliers. as a 
result, 100% of money received is 
donated to pcfa.

community participation

The Adonis Society Ball

this year’s ball was a spectacle like 
no other. held at the Queensland 
Maritime Museum on the banks of the 
brisbane river the event resembled 
more of a hollywood a-list party than 
a historical naval site. 

twenty young professionals, who make 
up the adonis society, hosted the 
gentlemen’s ball. tickets to the annual 
black tie bash are hotly sought after 
each year, making it one of the premier 
events on brisbane. the ball is an 
opportunity for the gents’ committee 
to raise funds for two charities close to 
their hearts – pcfa and youngcare.

ball president gordon lewis said 
from its inception in 2005, the ball’s 
committee had always maintained its 
purpose of raising awareness of men’s 
health. “We’ve continued to exceed 
all expectations and that is credit to 
the young men who make up this 
committee.” gordon steps down as 
president this year but says he’s excited 
to leave on such a high after one of the 
best gents’ balls on record.

2012
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Southport Sharks Corporate lunch

this annual sportsman’s lunch is held 
in the clubs function room with sam 
Kekovich presiding over the event 
formalities. southport sharks club 
ceo dean bowtell said the clubs 
members were proud to do their bit to 
support worthy causes.

“southport sharks has always had a 
focus on giving back to the community. 
We support many local causes as 
well as prostate cancer. however our 
membership is very focussed on men’s 
health issues.”

equipment for the gold coast 
university hospital children’s 
emergency department, donations 
to little souls early intervention 
services to children and volunteering 
gold coast have all featured in the 
southport sharks community giving.

however the clubs commitment to 
prostate cancer has been evergreen. 
as sam Kekovich would say,  

“you know it makes sense.”
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Perth to margaret River Cycle 

another first for Wa was the perth 
to Margaret river cycle. the event 
will also be held annually providing a 
great platform for both fundraising and 
raising awareness.

lotterywest grant 

pcfa Wa was successful in an 
application for a lotterywest grant to 
support a new office refurbishment 
the new office fit-out will provide 
capacity for pcfa in the delivery of 
its support and outreach work in the 
community. the new layout provides 
a board room, a meeting room and 
three work stations in an open plan 
arrangement. We thank lotterywest 
for their generous support.

Chevron City to Surf 

the chevron city to surf for activ 
is Wa’s largest community sporting 
event, raising funds for many charities. 
participation in this event is possible 
at different levels, depending on your 
fitness level, and it is very family 
focused. for the first time, pcfa had 
runners in this prestigious running 
festival. the Wa office sent pcfa 
runner’s packs to those who registered 
to run for pcfa. their efforts raised 
a significant amount of funds and 
awareness for pcfa’s work.

Roughrider Rudling golf day 

roughrider rudling golf day was a 
fantastic day on the golf greens for 
all involved. giles partners chartered 
accountants and interwest financial 
services held this golf day in honour of 
peter rudling, a former client of both 
giles partners and interwest, who lost 
his life to prostate cancer.

this inaugural event was held at  
Mount lawley golf club and was  
a wonderful success, raising funds  
and awareness within the financial  
services industry of prostate cancer.  
this event has been established as an  
annual event with all proceeds going  
to prostate cancer foundation  
of australia.
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The mates 500 Relay

in March 2011 six mates from 
Manjimup, tim lyster, heath east, 
anthony stubberfield, Mat Johnston, 
Wayne barnden and paul omodei set 
off on a 500 kilometre relay through 
many shires and towns in the south 
West of Wa.

the event ran over 4 days and 
awareness evenings were held along 
the way with some fantastic celebrity 
speakers and ambassadors helping to 
promote the cause.

this event raised a large amount 
of funds for regional Men’s health 
and prostate cancer foundation and 
helped raise considerable awareness 
about men’s health issues in the local 
communities.

this year, 2012, the same six mates 
ran an additional 500km, i.e. 1000km, 
through 22 towns and 16 shires, raising 
awareness along the way. 

Whisky live Perth

this first time event in perth was a 
tremendous success. raising much 
needed funds and laying good ground 
work for the event to be delivered 
annually in perth and other states. 

community participation
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Advertiser Sunday mail Foundation

a good relationship continued with the 
advertiser sunday Mail foundation. 
2011 saw a significant donation from 
the annual grand final luncheon, 
while 2012 saw participation in the 
annual famous faces luncheon with 
sam Kekovich appearing on behalf  
of pcfa.

National BBQ Campaign

locally, over 1000 kilos of sausages 
were donated by from nature 
pastoral co. hundreds of loaves of 
bread by bakers delight, soft drinks 
by schweppes and mushrooms by 
the australian Mushroom growers 
association. the Master butchers 
association distributed pcfa collateral 
to every butcher shop in the state,  
all working collaboratively to make  
the sa bbQs a success.

The Adelaide Hunt Club melbourne 
Cup luncheon 

the adelaide hunt club Melbourne 
cup luncheon is legendary in the 
adelaide business community. pcfa 
sourced over 25 major auction and 
silent auction items to raise money  
in a stylish, action packed day.

Robern menz

family owned robern Menz teamed 
with channel 9 and triple M to raise 
awareness and funds with Menz 
giant fruchocs by turning their 
iconic packaging blue and donating 
proceeds from sales. a significant 
donation of advertising boosted sales 
in delicatessens, cinemas, on the 
run convenience stores and petrol 
stations; every coles, Woolworths, 
foodland and iga across the state. 
the cause which was supported by 
media, sporting, arts, business and 
community celebrities and vip’s.

Coonawarra Vignerons Association

the bond between the coonawarra 
vignerons association was 
strengthened with the attendance of 
david and pam sandoe at their barrel 
series Wine auction. again pcfa 
were the sole beneficiaries of  
the evening.

JULY

2011

AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER

Community	Fundraising	Highlights
SA & NT
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community partnersHips

February

february saw the start of regular 
lunches by the urban development 
institute of australia – sa and a very 
different organization, the adelaide 
beer and beef club. pcfa worked with 
both to secure raffle items for every 
event, also ensuring pcfa information 
was distributed.

The good guys

following a golf day at Mt osmond 
golf club in april, the good guys 
nominated pcfa as their charity 
of choice for the financial year 
2012/2013. pcfa now has presence 
not only at the entrance of each store 
where the donation bins are situated 
but also at the till area, where local and 
national newsletters are distributed 
and large donation tins collect money 
from the sale of pcfa blue pins and 
wrist bands. 

mad march

Mad March as it is known in adelaide 
saw pcfa involved with bicycle sa in 
the boileau velo adelaide family fun 
ride, the clipsal 500 car race and an 
inaugural Winestate Magazine tasting 
at the arkaba hotel.

The Australian Balloon Association

the australian balloon association 
ran an enormous black tie dinner to 
mark the anniversary of the sinking 
of the titanic. pcfa worked closely 
with the committee for over a year 
and secured financial support. in a 
first for port lincoln sam newman 
entertained a capacity crowd at the 
port lincoln hotel and committees 
were established in Murray bridge and 
victor harbour for like fundraisers.

community participation

2012

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY JUNE
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Boards & committees

National	Board
chairman: david sandoe oaM

deputy chairman: Jim hughes aM

roz baker

steve callister

peter gebert – appointed october 2012

david gregory – to november 2012

des grogan – retired september 2012

chris hall

dr david Malouf

professor villis Marshall ac

professor John Mills

John palmer

tony sonneveld oaM

associate professor phillip stricker

Finance	&	Operations	
Committee
chairman: chris hall

Jim hughes aM

david sandoe oaM

graeme Johnson

John palmer

dr anthony lowe

helen falconer

Marketing	&	Fundraising
chairman: steve callister

lisa cheng

dr anthony lowe

Awareness	&	Education
chairman: dr david Malouf

Margaret bennett

dr anthony lowe

dr tim Wong – from november 2012

david sandoe oaM

associate professor phillip stricker

Julie sykes

Research
chairman: professor John Mills

dr bruce Kynaston  
(consumer representative)

associate professor richard pearson

professor suzanne chambers

professor robert (frank) gardiner aM

associate professor howard gurney

associate professor susan henshall

associate professor lisa horvath

professor peter leedman

professor robert newton

National	Support	Group	
Committee
chairman: david gregory

John friedsam

terry harbour

terry Koltasz

dr bruce Kynaston

dr anthony lowe

bill richmond

terry Wheeler

Marketing & Fundraising Team
– Erika Garcia, Fiona Ziebell not pictured

Finance & Operations Team
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Boards & committees our people

State	Boards

New South Wales & Australian 
Capital Territory State Board

chairman: tony sonneveld oaM

neil adams

charlie barnett  
(rotary representative)

Jack fraenkel

peter haylen

dr Michael izard

dr philip Katelaris  
– to february 2012

the hon. Jim lloyd

Mike Mcclellan

david nomchong

graeme postlethwaite  
– from february 2012

Marty rhone

lyn thurman

terry Wheeler  
– to february 2012

Victoria & Tasmania State Board

chairman: des grogan 
– to september 2012

darren alexander

Mike brady

don casboult

peter gebert 
– chairman from october 2012

Karen olesnicky

Johnathan oppy

John preston

david schmidt

geoff underwood

steve Whelan

Western Australia State Board

chairperson: roz baker

terry Koltasz

Jeffery leach – from february 2012

adrian lester – from June 2012

dr Kenneth Michael ac

bill Munro – from october 2011

dr siobhan ng

dr tom shannon

Morgan soloman  – from June 2012

Queensland State Board

chairman: Jim hughes  
– to June 2012

don baumber

Warren cameron  
(rotary representative)

professor Judith clements

dr bruce Kynaston

ian smith

South Australia & Northern Territory 
State Board

chairman: professor villis Marshall ac 

Margie andrewartha

Michael barrett

nick bolkus

Michael brock

helen dundon

peter hurley

Justin Jamieson

Jeff roberts

dr peter sutherland

Will taylor

steven trigg

dr dick Wilson  
(rotary representative)

Support & Nursing TeamAwareness & Education TeamFinance & Operations Team
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staFF

Executive
dr Anthony lowe  chief executive officer & company secretary

Kelly Foster executive assistant

Research
dr miranda Xhilaga director of research programs

Anne maerz research program coordinator

Awareness	and	Education
margaret Bennett national Manager awareness and education 

Angela Pearce senior project officer (to September 2012)

dr Tim Wong senior project officer (from November 2012)

Tracy mcCown  project officer ambassador program and projects

Support
john Friedsam national Manager support groups 

Evan Kallipolitis nsW / act support group and outreach program coordinator

Amanda Pomery  vic / tas support group and outreach program coordinator

lorraine Hagaman Qld support group and outreach program coordinator

Emilia Hay Wa support group and outreach program coordinator

Carla demos administration assistant – support & advocacy

Charlotte Houghton support group project administrator

Nursing
julie Sykes director of nursing

NSW/ACT Team WA Team
– Emilia Hay not pictured

SA Team
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staFF our people

Marketing	&	Fundraising
lisa Cheng head of Marketing & fundraising

janett Hanisch individual giving Manager (from November 2012)

david Nevin corporate partnerships Manager (from September 2012)

Wendy Farrow nsW / act state Manager

Cassandra Birch nsW / act events & office coordinator

graeme Higgs Qld state Manager

Paula Truesdale Qld events & office coordinator

david Rhodes vic / tas state Manager

Kendra overall acting vic / tas state Manager (from October 2012)

Tracey Cullen vic / tas events & office coordinator

Cate Harman Wa state Manager

Belinda Katz Wa events & office coordinator

Karyn Foster sa state Manager (from October 2012)

Parisa mayel online Manager (from October 2012)

Erika garcia campaign Manager

Carla Torell publications coordinator (maternity leave from March 2012)

Fiona Ziebell publications coordinator (from March 2012)

Tim Slater supporter services Manager (to November 2012)

Adrian mitchell data & supporter services Manager (from November 2012)

Yvonne lui donations processing assistant

Connie Cameron supporter care assistant

Finance	&	Operations
Helen Falconer financial controller

lynn li accountant

Elsa Chow finance officer

Ross Anderson customer service & database

Human	Resources
Priya Subrahmanyan Manager, human resources

QLD TeamVIC / TAS Team
– Amanda Pomery not pictured

WA Team
– Emilia Hay not pictured
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Financial HigHligHts

PCFA	has	seven	categories	of	fundraising	income:

 movember

 Events – including The Big Aussie Barbie and community fundraising events

 Individual giving – including direct mail, monthly pledges and bequests

 government and other grants

 Trusts and Foundations

 Corporate Partnerships

 merchandise Sales

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012 are 
included in this report. These financial highlights are intended to provide an overview of 
the financial statements and to highlight matters of interest. They are not intended to 
replace or modify the content of the separate audited consolidated financial statements.

uP 15%
fundraising incoMe

$12.2Mto

pcfa’s fundraising income increased by 15% from $10.6 million to $12.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2012.  
the distribution between categories was as follows:

FoR THE YEAR ENdEd 30 juNE 2012
Income  
($000)

Percentage of Fundraising  
 Income (%)

Movember 6,100.0 49.9

events 2,399.4 19.6

individual giving 1,483.8 12.2

government and other grants 1,310.0 10.7

trusts and foundations 493.5 4.1

corporate partnerships 400.9 3.3

Merchandise sales 28.7 0.2

Total 12,216.3 100.0
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the federal government through 
cancer australia provided $1.3 million 
of funding to strengthen and grow 
pcfa’s affiliated support group 
network; develop evidence-based 
information and educational resources 
for men and their families affected 
by prostate cancer; and to devise 
and implement easily accessible web 
based resources through internet 
based social networking tools.

the extremely strong level of 
community involvement and support 
continued with events raising  
$2.4 million.

pcfa continued to benefit from 
the very generous support of the 
Movember foundation. this year 
Movember donated $5 million to 
support pcfa’s research program 
and $1.1 million of additional funding 
for pcfa’s prostate cancer specialist 
nursing service, bringing Movember’s 
total funding for the service to  
$3.6 million.

donations from individuals were also 
strong with solid growth in pcfa’s 
direct mail program. individual giving 
from donations, direct mail, monthly 
pledges and bequests totalled  
$1.5 million.

Investments	of	$15.9	million

pcfa raises in full the amount 
required to fund research grants 
before committing to funding. the 
funds raised are then invested over 
the duration of the grant period and 
released in periodic intervals.

pcfa’s investment policy is to hold 
short term funding requirements 
on deposit at commonwealth bank 
where they are available for immediate 
withdrawal without penalty. the 
balance of funds is invested in 
commonwealth bank term deposits. 
in addition, pcfa has a small managed 
investment portfolio with Macquarie. 
pcfa is in the process of selling down 
the managed investment portfolio.

at 30 June the cash investments 
amounted to $15.1 million and the 
managed investment portfolio 
amounted to $0.8 million.

overall, pcfa benefited from 
investment income of $847,823.

Fundraising	costs	 
$0.9	million,	or	7%	 
of	fundraising	income

pcfa endeavours to control costs and 
to benefit from donated goods and 
services wherever possible. direct 
fundraising costs were $0.9 million,  
or 7% of fundraising income.

Future	commitments	to	
research	grant	funding	and	
Prostate	Cancer	Specialist	
Nursing	Service	of	 
$12.8	million

at 30 June 2012 future commitments 
to research grant funding and the 
prostate cancer specialist nursing 
service amounted to $9.4 million  
and $3.4 million respectively. 
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director’s report

Directors

the names of each person who has been a director during the year and to the date of this report are:

 mr graeme johnson – Chairman   resignation as chairman effective from 23/2/2012

 ms Rosalind Baker  appointed 4/8/2011

 mr Steve Callister

 mr jim Freemantle  resignation effective 27/10/2011

 mr david gregory

 mr des grogan

 mr Chris Hall

 mr jim Hughes Am

 dr david malouf

 Professor Villis marshall AC

 Professor john mills

 mr john Palmer

 mr david Sandoe oAm  appointed chairman from 23/2/2012

 mr Tony Sonneveld oAm

 Associate Professor Phillip Stricker

 ms Patricia Watson  resignation effective 23/02/2012

directors have been in office since the start of the year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Company	Secretary

dr anthony lowe held the position of company secretary at the end of the financial year.

Your directors present their report together with the consolidated financial statements 
of the Group, which comprises Prostate Cancer Foundation of Australia Limited and its 
controlled entity Prostate Cancer Foundation of Australia (PCFA) for the year ended  
30 June 2012.
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Principal	Activities

the principal activity of pcfa during the 
financial year was to raise awareness 
and attract widespread financial support 
for the work of pcfa to:

•  fund research into the causes, 
detection, diagnosis and improved 
treatment of prostate cancer;

•  provide information, support and 
counselling to those affected by 
prostate cancer; and

•  raise community awareness of  
the incidence of prostate cancer, 
thereby encouraging earlier detection 
and more effective treatment of the 
disease.

during the 2011/12 financial year  
pcfa commenced the specialist 
nursing program with funds provided 
from Movember and also commenced 
the project “supporting men with 
prostate cancer through evidence-
based resources and support” with 
funds provided from the australian 
government.

Operating	Result

the operating (deficit) / surplus of 
pcfa for the year ended 30 June  
2012 amounted to $(980,983),  
(2011: $(2,952,052)).

Dividends

pcfa is limited by guarantee and is not 
permitted to pay dividends.

Review	of	Operations

pcfa’s operations for the year 
resulted in a deficit of $980,983 
(2011 deficit of $2,952,052) after the 
approval of research grants and 

specialist nursing program totalling 
$8.21 million (2010/11 $8.04 million). 
pcfa deliberately allocated funds to 
the specialist nursing program and 
has undertaken the activities funded 
by the australian government in 
order to expand the activities that 
are consistent with pcfa’s mission of 
reducing the impact of prostate cancer 
on the australian community.

a detailed review of operations can 
be found in the annual report which 
accompanies this financial report.

Significant	Changes	in	State	
of	Affairs

no significant changes to pcfa’s  
state of affairs occurred during the 
financial year.

After	Balance	Date	Events

no further matters or circumstances 
have arisen since the end of the 
financial year which significantly 
affected or may affect the operations 
of pcfa, the results of those 
operations, or state of affairs of pcfa 
in future financial years.

Future	Developments

pcfa expects to maintain the present 
status and level of operations and 
hence there are no likely significant 
developments in pcfa’s operations.

Environmental	Issues

pcfa’s operations are not regulated 
by any significant environmental 
regulation under a law of the 
commonwealth or of a state  
or territory.

Objectives

pcfa’s objectives are:

•  be the peak independent body 
driving research into prostate cancer

•  improve early detection rates

•  be known as the best source for 
support and information regarding 
prostate cancer

•  be a sustainable organisation capable 
of delivering the mandate now and in 
the future

to achieve these aims pcfa has 
continued to fund high quality 
research through its national grants 
programme, as noted above, promoted 
and supported the establishment 
of additional support groups which, 
nationally, now number in excess of 
100, and raised awareness of prostate 
cancer through the production of 
several new publications and our 
regular newsletter, all of which are 
accessible via the pcfa website.

Options

no options over issued shares or 
interests in pcfa were granted during 
or since the end of the financial year 
and there were no options outstanding 
at the date of this report.
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Information	on	Directors

mr david Sandoe oAm  
– dip. bia, Mba, anZiif (fellow) cip, 
McMi, faiM, faicd

david is the national chairman of 
pcfa, chairman of foundation diane 
and co-leader of the sydney adventist 
hospital – prostate cancer support 
group. he has also held various board 
and committee roles with cancer 
voices nsW, cancer voices australia, 
pcfa’s – support and advocacy 
committee – public awareness and 
education committee and the nsW 
board, the institute of Magnetic 
resonance research, cancer council 
of nsW and the cancer institute’s 
nsW oncology group – urology. 

he is general Manager and a principal 
of finity consulting pty limited, 
an australasian specialist general 
and health insurance actuarial and 
management consulting practice. 
david is a former president of the 
australian & new Zealand institute of 
insurance and finance and a former 
national president of the swiss 
australian chamber of commerce  
and is an honorary life member of  
both organisations. 

ms Rosalind Baker 

rosalind (roz) baker was born 
in Zimbabwe where she built a 
successful real estate and export 
company for 20 years. arriving to live 
in australia 17 years ago, roz used 
her entrepreneurial spirit to integrate 
into perth’s business community, 
becoming a property developer as 
well as a practicing business broker, 
assisting migrants to find businesses 
and investments. an active member 
of perth rotary club she won a paul 
harris award for work with emerging 
young business leaders. this led her 
to chairing the board of the advantage 

foundation dedicated to advancing 
young entrepreneurs. roz became 
the rotary representative on the Wa 
board of pcfa following her husband’s 
affliction with prostate cancer, and 
was subsequently invited to become 
the chair upon the retirement of 
Jim freemantle. also a certified 
counsellor, roz gives public and 
private talks to couples about personal 
relationships following prostate cancer. 
her qualifications include ceo in 
family hotel business in Zimbabwe; 
registered estate agent and 
proprietor, Member of rei Zimbabwe; 
diploma in business Management 
(real estate) Wa 1998 and certified 
counsellor (australia) 2000.

mr Steve Callister  
– b.bus., M.b.a., fcpa, faicd, faiM

steve is Managing director and 
partner of an import wholesale 
company, dealing with all major 
retailers in australia and new 
Zealand. convenor of st vincent’s 
prostate cancer support group. 
former roles include chairman of the 
nsW sac, delegate to the national 
sac and chairman to the nsW 
board. steve became chairman of 
pcfa’s Marketing and sponsorship 
committee of the national board in 
May 2009.

mr jim Freemantle  
– b.ec., Mba

currently holds the following 
positions – deputy chairman of 
racing & Wagering Wa, director, 
Mda national insurance pty ltd, 
Member Western australian planning 
commission, central perth planning 
committee, Member of the swan 
river trust, chairman of Wa board of 

pcfa, trustee – anglican diocese of 
perth, director – dairy W.a. 

Jim is a fellow of the australian 
institute of company directors and 
the australian institute of banking 
& finance. Jim was ceo of home 
building society from 1995 – 2003. 
Jim previously held various senior 
positions in banking (nab, australian 
bank, elders iXl) and corporate 
consulting.

mr david gregory

david worked as national sales 
Manager, golden poultry farming 
industries, ingham’s enterprises, 
goodman fielder and others prior 
to setting up as a food broker to the 
foodservice industry. david worked 
as a volunteer for the cancer council 
tasmania, & has had the role of 
convenor of the hobart support group 
and was elected to the vic/tas 
chapter council (deputy chairman)  
and as sac representative for tasmania. 
he was further elected to the chair 
of the national support & advocacy 
committee in 2010 and the chair of the 
newly formed national support groups 
committee in January 2012.

mr desmond grogan  
– dip.c.e., M.eng. sc., fellow vpela

des grogan retired from the 
consulting engineering practice 
he founded after a career as a civil 
& traffic engineer. at retirement 
the practice had grown to a multi-
disciplinary group of 120 people with 
offices in brisbane and Melbourne 
where it was the largest traffic 
engineering group in victoria.

des joined the victorian pcfa board 
in late 2005 and was trained as an 
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ambassador in the pilot study initiated 
by the pcfa.

mr Chris Hall  
– b.comm. (hons), ca

chris joined the board of pcfa in 
May 2007 as finance director. he is 
a partner and member of the national 
executive committee of KpMg, having 
previously been a board member. he 
was also a member of the australian 
auditing and assurance standards 
board, until January 2011.

mr jim Hughes Am  
– gaicd, snr assoc. anZiif

Jim hughes has held senior positions 
in the insurance industry throughout 
australia over many years and is 
actively involved in community 
activities. he is a senior associate 
of the australian and new Zealand 
institute of insurance and finance 
and a graduate of the australian 
institute of company directors. 
he also lectures on corporate risk 
management and business strategy 
formulation on behalf of the australian 
institute of company directors.  
Jim is a director of youi insurance.  
he is chairman of the apex 
foundation of australia and a life 
governor of the apex clubs of 
australia. Jim is currently the  
deputy national chairman of pcfa.

mr graeme johnson  
– llb (hons), ba (hons)

former national chairman (from 26 
october 2006 to 21 february 2012) of 
pcfa and inaugural victorian chairman, 
graeme is a solicitor and former partner 
of national law firm, allens arthur 
robinson. graeme now runs his own 

legal practice specialising in acting for 
sporting bodies and venue operators, 
professional service providers and the 
entertainment industry.

dr david malouf  
– Mbbs, fracs (urol)

dr david Malouf graduated from  
the university of sydney in 1990.  
he completed his urology training in 
sydney prior to undertaking a fellowship 
year at the hammersmith hospital in 
london, specialising in surgical oncology 
and renal transplantation.

his special interests include 
uro-oncology, brachytherapy for 
prostate cancer, erectile dysfunction 
and the management of urinary  
tract calculi.

he is the immediate past president 
of the urological society of australia 
and new Zealand and the past chair 
of the australian and new Zealand 
association of urological surgeons. 
dr Malouf is the chair of the awareness 
and education committee of the 
prostate cancer foundation of australia. 

he serves on the board of the 
australasian brachytherapy group 
and is a director of the british Journal 
of urology international. in addition 
to being a member of the urological 
society of australia and new Zealand, 
dr Malouf is a member of the 
european association of urology, the 
american urological association and 
an honorary Member of the british 
association of urological surgeons.

he is a clinical teacher at the 
university of new south Wales 
Medical school and is a vMo at  
st george hospital, hurstville  
private hospital and the Mater  
private hospital.

Professor Villis marshall AC  
– Mbbs, Md (adel), fracs

general Manager of the royal 
adelaide hospital, clinical professor 
of surgery adelaide university, 
international director of the order of 
st John, chairman of the australian 
cancer network for the development 
of guide lines for the management of 
local and advanced prostate cancer. 
past president of the urological 
society of australia and new Zealand 
and Kidney health australia. he was 
also a director of surgical and specialty 
service at the royal adelaide hospital 
and director freemason’s centre for 
Men’s health.

Professor john mills  
– sb (chicago), Md (harvard), facp, 
fracp, arcpa

John is a specialist physician, 
internationally-recognized scientist 
and biotech businessman. he 
currently holds positions as the 
professor of Medicine, epidemiology 
& Microbiology, Monash university; 
professor of Microbiology, rMit; 
consulting physician, alfred hospital 
and several positions on biotechnology 
venture capital and company boards. 
from 1992 to 2002 he was director 
of the burnet institute for Medical 
research and public health. prior 
to immigrating to australia he was 
professor of Medicine, Microbiology, 
laboratory Medicine and clinical 
pharmacy at the university of 
california, san francisco. he is the 
director of research and development 
at tissupath specialist pathology;  
in that position he has co-authored  
4 research papers on prostate cancer 
since 2010.
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mr john Palmer  
– b.a, b.sc. app (building) class 1 
hons, faiM, faib, Miaa, chartered 
builder, Jp.

John is a past president of the rotary 
club of lane cove and a rotarian 
of 35 years. in 1997 he was the 
second chairman of pcfa. he is a 
retired associate lecturer university 
of technology sydney. John is a 
chartered builder and the owner and 
sole director of building durability 
pty ltd, t a taylor (aust) pty ltd and 
research & applied technologies pty 
ltd. his personal expertise includes 
extensive knowledge and experience 
in the durability of buildings and 
building materials, in concrete spalling 
investigation analysis and repair, 
in waterproofing diagnostics and 
rectification methodology, in structural 
facade maintenance and repairs and 
in historic building conservation. in 
1991 John established a joint venture 
with and was a board Member of the 
tianao building repair Materials 
institute in tianjin china until 2002.

mr Tony Sonneveld oAm  
– dip. Met. rMit

as a qualified Metallurgist, tony has 
held several managerial / directorship 
positions in construction related 
businesses around australia, new 
Zealand and south east asia over 
the past 40 years. he has honorary 
memberships in australian institute for 
non destructive testing, international 
committee for ndt, officer training 
unit scheyville army association and 
has received many industry awards.

tony is a 9 year survivor with 
advanced metastatic prostate cancer 
and treats every day is a bonus. 
in august 2007, tony joined the 
nsW board of pcfa as a consumer 

advocate and ambassador speaker 
to actively promote prostate cancer 
awareness, education and fund raising 
and became nsW chairman in May 
2009. he is a member of cancer 
voices nsW, anZup consumer 
advisory panel and participates in 
the cancer council nsW strategic 
research partnership grants 
consumer review of applications.

Associate Professor Phillip Stricker  
– Mbbs (new south Wales) 
(honours), fracs

a/prof phillip stricker is an 
international expert on the 
management of prostate cancer. 
he has the largest experience in 
australasia in prostate cancer surgery, 
both open and robotic; with over 4500 
cases performed almost 900 robotic. 
in the area of prostate cancer he 
initiated brachytherapy in australasia, 
initiated robotic surgery in new south 
Wales, developed one of the safest 
techniques in prostate biopsy with 
the transperineal technique, and has 
focused on personalised and tailored 
therapy for all patients with prostate 
cancer for over 20 years. he developed 
the dvd “so how do i choose” for 
patients with prostate cancer. 

his current interests are in maximizing 
clinical outcomes, new forms of 
therapy and imaging and perfecting 
surgical techniques to maximize 
potency in prostate cancer. in addition 
to this, he has been an integral part 
of education to gps and the public 
in the areas of prostate cancer with 
his book written with prof. phelps, 
now in its third edition, as well as 
currently serving as the chairman 
of the education and awareness 
subcommittee for the prostate  
cancer foundation of australia.

he is chairman of the department 
of urology at st vincent’s campus 
in sydney and the director of the 
st vincent’s prostate cancer centre 
of which he is also chairman of 
the fellowship training program 
and is an inaugural director of the 
national board of the prostate cancer 
foundation of australia.

ms Patricia Watson

for more than 25 years patricia has 
worked in management roles in the 
media, whilst serving as a director 
and office-bearer of multiple not-for-
profit organisations, including a period 
as president and chairman of the 
australian Museum. she is now head 
of business affairs for great southern 
film and television. until she moved 
to new Zealand in october 2006, 
patricia was chairman of pcfa.
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Meetings	of	Directors

during the year, 4 meetings of directors were held. attendances by each director were as follows:

directors meetings attended Eligible to attend   Number 

Mr david sandoe oaM   4   4

Ms rosalind baker  4   3

Mr steve callister   4   4

Mr Jim freemantle   1   1

Mr david gregory   4   4

Mr des grogan   4   3

Mr chris hall   4   2

Mr Jim hughes   4   4

Mr graeme Johnson   4   4

dr david Malouf   4   3

professor villis Marshall ac   4   2

professor John Mills   4   3

Mr John palmer   4   4

Mr tony sonneveld oaM   4   3

associate professor phillip stricker   4   2

Ms patricia Watson   2   2
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Indemnifying	Officers	or	Auditor

during or since the end of the financial year pcfa has not given an indemnity or entered into an agreement to indemnify, or 
paid or agreed to pay insurance premiums for any officer or auditor of pcfa except as follows:

pcfa has paid premiums to insure directors against liabilities for costs and expenses incurred by them in defending any legal 
proceedings arising out of their conduct while acting in the capacity of director of pcfa, other than conduct involving a wilful 
breach of duty in relation to pcfa. the amount of premium paid was $4,400.

Proceedings	on	Behalf	of	PCFA

no person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of pcfa or intervene in any proceedings to which 
pcfa is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of pcfa for all or any part of those proceedings. pcfa was 
not party to any such proceedings during the year.

Auditor’s	Independence	Declaration

the lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2012 has been received and can be found on page 8 
of the directors’ report.

signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors.

Chris Hall 
director

dated this 31st day of october 2012 
sydney, nsW

68



auditor’s independence declaration

Auditor’s	Independence	Declaration	to	the	Directors	of	 
Prostate	Cancer	Foundation	of	Australia	Limited	(ABN	42	073	253	924)

i declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2012, there have been:

1.  no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation  
to the audit; and

2.  no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

mark driessen 
partner 
Walterturnbull

dated this 31st day of october 2012 
sydney, nsW

liability limited by a scheme, approved under professional standards legislation
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consolidated statement oF compreHensive income

FoR THE YEAR ENdEd 30 juNE 2012 Note 2012 2011

$ $

revenue 3 13,211,425 11,749,023

administration employee benefit expenses (1,489,869) (1,250,170)

direct fundraising expenses (915,127) (436,303)

direct support group expenses (707,023) (786,094)

research grants & specialist (8,211,278) (8,042,151)

direct awareness activity expenses (969,269) (2,681,631)

project and other administration expenses (1,875,695) (1,479,534)

loss on sale of financial assets (24,147) (25,192)

deficit before income tax (980,983) (2,952,052)

income tax expense 1(m) – –

deficit after income tax (980,983) (2,952,052)

Other Comprehensive Income 
loss on revaluation of available for sale 
financial assets

(55,656) (7,815)

Total comprehensive income for the year (1,036,639) (2,959,867)

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated statement oF Financial position

AS AT 30 juNE 2012 Note 2012 2011

$ $

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

cash and cash equivalents 5 15,095,467 15,839,935

trade and other receivables 6 3,962,978 2,714,541

other current assets 7 452,294 153,329

inventory 8 103,871 –

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 19,614,610 18,707,805

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

financial assets 9 930,089 1,290,456

plant and equipment 10 212,183 212,863

leasehold improvements 10 8,756 –

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,151,028 1,503,319

ToTAl ASSETS 20,765,638 20,211,124

lIABIlITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

trade and other payables 11 769,090 336,635

research grants payable 12 5,840,289 7,262,775

specialist nursing program payable 12 1,137,493 –

short term provisions 13 55,477 115,866

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,802,349 7,715,276

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

trade and other payables 11 25,851 –

research grants payable 12 3,618,737 4,368,087

specialist nursing program payable 12 2,237,792 –

long term provisions 13 65,678 87,882

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,948,058 4,455,969

TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,750,407 12,171,245

NET ASSETS 7,015,231 8,039,879

EQuITY

reserves 14 (134,353) (90,688)

retained earnings 7,149,584 8,130,567

ToTAl EQuITY 7,015,231 8,039,879

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated statement oF cHanges in eQuity

FoR THE YEAR ENdEd 30 juNE 2012 Note Retained Earnings Asset Revaluation Total

$ $ $

Balance at 30 june 2010 11,082,619 (104,556) 10,978,063

total comprehensive income (2,952,052) (7,815) (2,959,867)

reserve written back on realisation of 
financial assets

– 21,683 21,683

Balance at 30 june 2011 8,130,567 (90,688) 8,039,879

total comprehensive income (980,983) (55,656) (1,036,639)

reserve written back on realisation of 
financial assets

– 11,991 11,991

Balance at 30 june 2012 7,149,584 (134,353) 7,015,231

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated statement oF casH FloWs

FoR THE YEAR ENdEd 30 juNE 2012 Note 2012 2011

$ $

CASH FloWS FRom oPERATINg ACTIVITIES

receipts and contributions from the public and government 10,678,920 12,158,181

payments to suppliers and employees (5,774,712) (7,314,965)

research grants &specialist nursing paid (7,007,829) (5,402,194)

interest and distributions received 1,096,825 1,222,686

net cash (used in) / generated by operating activities 19 (1,006,796) 663,708

CASH FloWS FRom INVESTINg ACTIVITIES

proceeds from investments 307,294 354,018

payments for investments (14,724) (70,460)

payments for plant and equipment (54,667) (11,050)

proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment 24,440 –

net cash generated in investing activities 262,328 272,508

net increase in cash held (744,468) 936,216

cash at the beginning of the financial year 15,839,935 14,903,719

Cash at the end of the financial year 5 15,095,467 15,839,935

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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notes to tHe consolidated Financial statements 
For tHe year ended 30 June 2012

Reporting	Entity

prostate cancer foundation of 
australia limited (the company) is a 
company domiciled in australia, the 
sole activity of which is to act as the 
corporate trustee of prostate cancer 
foundation of australia (the trust). 
the consolidated financial statements 
as at and for the year ended 30 June 
2012 comprise the company and the 
trust, collectively referred to as pcfa.

pcfa is a not for profit entity.

Basis	of	Preparation

the financial report is a general 
purpose financial report that has 
been prepared in accordance with 
australian accounting standards 
(including australian accounting 
interpretations), the Corporations Act 
2001, the Charitable Fundraising Act 
1991 and its associated regulations.

australian accounting standards 
set out accounting policies that the 
aasb has concluded would result in 
a financial report containing relevant 
and reliable information about 
transactions, events and conditions.

Material accounting policies adopted 
in the preparation of this financial 
report are presented below and have 
been consistently applied unless 
otherwise stated.

the financial report has been prepared 
on an accruals basis and is based 
on historical costs, modified, where 
applicable, by the measurement at fair 
value of selected non-current assets 
and financial assets. all amounts are 
stated in australian dollars and in 
presenting the financial report are 
rounded to the nearest dollar.

(a)	Revenue

fundraising proceeds, bequests and 
donations are accounted for when 
received and when pcfa is legally 
entitled to the income.

Movember income is accounted 
for on an accrual basis as part of its 
arrangements with an external agent.

interest revenue is recognised on a 
proportional basis taking into account 
the interest rates applicable to the 
financial assets.

all revenue is stated net of the amount 
of goods and services tax (gst).

(b)	Contributions

pcfa receives non-reciprocal 
contributions from the government. 
these contributions are recognised 
at the fair value upon receipt at 
which time an asset is taken up in 
the statement of financial position 
and revenue in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

(c)	Plant	&	Equipment

plant and equipment are measured 
on the cost basis, less depreciation 
and impairment losses. the carrying 
amount of plant and equipment 
is reviewed annually by directors 
to ensure it is not in excess of the 
recoverable amount from these assets. 
the recoverable amount is assessed 
on the basis of the expected net cash 
flows that will be received from the 
asset’s employment and subsequent 
disposal. the expected net cash  
flows have been discounted to their 
present value in determining their 
recoverable amounts.

plant and equipment that have been 
contributed at no cost, or for nominal 
cost, are valued at the fair value of the 
asset at the date it is acquired.

depreciation

the depreciable amount of all fixed 
assets is depreciated on a diminishing 
value basis over the asset’s useful life 
to pcfa commencing from the time 
the asset is held ready for use.

leasehold improvements are 
depreciated over the unexpired period 
of the lease.

the useful life applied for each class of 
depreciable assets is:

Class of Fixed Asset  useful lives 

computer equipment  1-5years

office furniture  
and equipment 10-20years

leasehold improvement 3-5years

the assets’ residual values and useful 
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if 
appropriate, at each balance sheet 
date. gains and losses on disposals  
are determined by comparing 
proceeds with the carrying amount. 
these gains or losses are included  
in the income statement.

(d)	Leases

leases of fixed assets, where 
substantially all the risks and benefits 
incidental to the ownership of the 
asset, but not the legal ownership, are 
transferred to pcfa are classified as 
finance leases.

finance leases are capitalised, 
recording an asset and a liability equal 
to the present value of the minimum 

Note	1:	Statement	of	Significant	Accounting	Policies
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governance & Finance

lease payments, including any 
guaranteed residual values.

leased assets are depreciated on a 
straight line basis over their estimated 
useful lives where it is likely that pcfa 
will obtain ownership of the asset. 
lease payments are allocated between 
the reduction of the lease liability  
and the lease interest expense for  
the period.

lease payments for operating leases, 
where substantially all the risks and 
benefits remain with the lessor, are 
charged as expenses on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

lease incentives under operating 
leases are recognised as a liability and 
amortised on a straight-line basis over 
the life of the lease term.

(e)	Financial	Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

financial assets and financial liabilities 
are recognised when pcfa becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. for financial assets, 
this is equivalent to the date that pcfa 
commits itself to either purchase or 
sell the asset (i.e. trade accounting is 
adopted). financial instruments are 
initially measured at fair value plus 
transactions costs except where the 
instrument is classified “at fair value 
through profit or loss” in which case 
transaction costs are expensed to 
profit or loss immediately.

Classification and subsequent 
measurement

financial instruments are subsequently 
measured at either fair value, 
amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method or cost. fair value 
represents the amount for which an 
asset could be exchanged or a liability 
settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties. Where available, 
quoted prices in an active market are 
used to determine fair value. in other 
circumstances, valuation techniques 
are adopted.

amortised cost is calculated as:

i.  the amount at which the financial 
asset or financial liability is 
measured at initial recognition;

ii.  less principal repayments;

iii.  plus or minus the cumulative 
amortisation of the difference, if 
any, between the amount initially 
recognised and the maturity 
amount calculated using the 
effective interest method; and

iv.  less any reduction for impairment.

the effective interest rate method is 
used to allocate interest income or 
interest expense over the relevant 
period and is equivalent to the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash payments or receipts (including 
fees, transaction costs and other 
premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life (or, when this cannot 
be reliably predicted, the contractual 
term) of the financial instrument to the 
net carrying amount of the financial 
asset or financial liability. revisions 
to expected future net cash flows 
will necessitate an adjustment to the 
carrying value with a consequential 

recognition of an income or expense in 
profit or loss.

(i)  Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss

  financial assets are classified at 
‘fair value through profit or loss’ 
when they are held for trading 
for the purpose of short-term 
profit taking, or where they are 
derivatives not held for hedging 
purposes, or when they are 
designated as such to avoid an 
accounting mismatch or to enable 
performance evaluation where 
a group of financial assets is 
managed by key management 
personnel on a fair value basis in 
accordance with a documented 
risk management or investment 
strategy. such assets are 
subsequently measured at fair 
value with changes in carrying 
value being included in profit  
or loss.

(ii) Loans and receivables

  loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with 
fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active 
market and are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost.

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

  held-to-maturity investments are 
non-derivative financial assets that 
have fixed maturities and fixed 
or determinable payments, and it 
is pcfa’s intention to hold these 
investments to maturity. they 
are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.
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(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

  available-for-sale financial assets 
are non-derivative financial assets 
that are either not capable of being 
classified into other categories 
of financial assets due to their 
nature, or they are designated 
as such by management. they 
comprise investments in the equity 
of other entities where there is 
neither a fixed maturity nor fixed or 
determinable payments.

  available-for-sale financial assets 
are classified as non-current assets.

(v) Financial liabilities

  non-derivative financial liabilities 
(excluding financial guarantees) 
are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

Fair Value

fair value is determined based on 
current bid prices for all quoted 
investments. valuation techniques are 
applied to determine the fair value of 
all unlisted securities, including recent 
arm’s length transactions, reference  
to similar instruments and option  
pricing models.

Impairment

at each reporting date, pcfa assesses 
whether there is objective evidence that 
a financial instrument has been impaired. 
in the case of available-for-sale financial 
instruments, a prolonged decline in the 
value of the instrument is considered 
to determine whether impairment has 
arisen. impairment losses are recognised 
in the income statement.

derecognition

financial assets are derecognised 
where the contractual rights to receipt 
of cash flows expires or the asset is 
transferred to another party whereby 
pcfa no longer has any significant 
continuing involvement in the risks 
and benefits associated with the asset. 
financial liabilities are derecognised 
where the related obligations are 
either discharged, cancelled or 
expired. the difference between the 
carrying value of the financial liability, 
which is extinguished or transferred 
to another party and the fair value 
of consideration paid including the 
transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities 
assumed is recognised in profit or loss.

(f)	Impairment	of	Assets

at each reporting date, pcfa reviews 
the carrying values of its tangible and 
intangible assets to determine whether 
there is any indication that those 
assets have been impaired. if such 
an indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset, being the higher 
of the asset’s fair value less costs to 
sell and value in use, is compared to 
the asset’s carrying value. any excess 
of the asset’s carrying value over its 
recoverable amount is expensed to the 
income statement.

Where the future economic benefits of 
the asset are not primarily dependent 
upon on the assets ability to generate 
net cash inflows and when pcfa 
would, if deprived of the asset, replace 
its remaining future economic benefits, 
value in use is depreciated cost of  
an asset.

Where it is not possible to estimate 
the recoverable amount of an assets 
class, pcfa estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit to 
which the class of assets belong.

Where an impairment loss on a 
revalued asset is identified, this is 
debited against the revaluation reserve 
in respect of the same class of asset 
to the extent that the impairment loss 
does not exceed the amount in the 
revaluation reserve for that same class 
of asset.

(g)	Research	Grants

research grants are expensed through 
the income statement and recognised 
as a liability when pcfa has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

it is considered that upon board 
approval of the research grants and 
notification of success to the grant 
applicant, pcfa is constructively 
obliged to fund the grants whereby 
an economic benefit will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation.

(h)		Specialist	Nursing	
Program

specialist nursing program payments 
are expensed through the income 
statement and recognised as a liability 
when pcfa has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result 
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of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation.

it is considered that upon board 
approval of the placement application 
and notification of success to the 
applicant organisation, pcfa is 
constructively obliged to fund the 
contract whereby an economic benefit 
will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation.

(i)	Employee	Benefits

provision is made for pcfa’s liability 
for employee benefits arising from 
services rendered by employees to 
balance sheet date. employee benefits, 
expected to be settled within one 
year, together with benefits arising 
from wages, salaries and annual leave 
which may be settled after one year, 
have been measured at the amounts 
expected to be paid when the liability 
is settled. other employee benefits, 
payable later than one year, have been 
measured at the net present value. 
contributions are made by pcfa  
to employee superannuation funds  
and are charged as expenses  
when incurred.

(j)	Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents

cash and cash equivalents include 
cash on hand, deposits held with 
banks with a maturity of six months 
or less, other short-term highly liquid 

investments and bank overdrafts.

(k)		Accounts	Receivable	 
and	other	debtors

accounts receivable expected to 
be collected within 12 months are 
classified as current assets. all other 
receivables are classified as non-
current assets. accounts receivable 
are initially recognised at fair value.

(l)	Goods	and	Services	Tax

revenues, expenses and assets 
are recognised net of the amount 
of gst, except where the amount 
of gst incurred is not recoverable 
from the australian tax office. in 
these circumstances the gst is 
recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of 
an item of the expense. receivables 
and payables in the balance sheet 
are shown inclusive of gst. the 
amount of gst recoverable from or 
payable to the ato is included with 
other receivables or payables in the 
statement of financial position. cash 
flows are presented in the statement 
of cash flows on a gross basis, except 
for the gst component of investing 
and financing activities, which are 
disclosed as operating cash flows.

(m)	Income	Tax

no provision for income tax has been 
made as pcfa is exempt from income 
tax under division 50 of the income 
Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(n)	Provisions

provisions are recognised when pcfa 
has a legal or constructive obligation, 
as a result of past events, for which it is 

probable that an outflow of economic 
benefits will result and that outflow 
can be reliably measured. provisions 
recognised represent the best estimate 
of the amounts required to settle the 
obligation at reporting date.

(o)	Comparative	Figures

Where required by accounting 
standards, comparative figures 
have been adjusted to conform with 
changes in presentation for the current 
financial year.

(p)		Accounts	payable	 
and	other	payables

accounts payable and other payables 
represent the liability outstanding at 
the end of the reporting period for 
goods and services received by pcfa 
during the financial year which remain 
unpaid. the balance is recognised as 
a current liability with the amounts 
normally paid within 30 days of 
recognition of the liability.

(q)		Critical	Accounting	
Estimates	and	Judgements

the directors evaluate estimates and 
judgements incorporated into the 
financial report based on historical 
knowledge and best available current 
information. estimates assume a 
reasonable expectation of future 
events and are based on current trends 
and economic data, obtained both 
externally and within pcfa.

Key Estimates – Impairment

pcfa assesses impairment at each 
reporting date by evaluating conditions 
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specific to pcfa that may be indicative 
of impairment triggers. recoverable 
amounts of relevant assets are 
reassessed using value-in-use 
calculations which incorporate various 
key assumptions.

Key judgements – Available-for-sale 
investments

pcfa maintains a portfolio of 
managed funds with a carrying value 
of $930,089 at reporting date. should 
investment prices decline in value for 
an extended period of time, pcfa has 
determined that such investments  
will be considered for impairment  
in the future.

(r)		New	Accounting	 
Standards	for	Application	
in	Future	Periods

Adoption of new Australian 
Accounting Standard requirements

no accounting standard has been 
adopted earlier than the application 
data as stated in the standard. no new 
accounting standards, amendments 
to standards and interpretations 
issued by the australian accounting 
standards board that are applicable 
in the current period are assessed to 
have material financial effect on pcfa.

Future Australian Accounting 
Standard requirements

new standards, amendments to 
standards and interpretations that are 
applicable to future periods have been 
issued by the australian accounting 
standards board. it is assessed that 
adopting these pronouncements, 
when effective, will have no material 
impact on future reporting periods.

(s)	Basis	of	Consolidation

subsidiaries are entities controlled by 
the group. the consolidated financial 
statements incorporate the assets 
and liabilities of all subsidiaries as 
at 30 June and results for the year 
then ended. intragroup balances 
and transactions, and any unrealized 
income and expenses arising, 
are eliminated in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements.

notes to tHe consolidated Financial statements 
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Note	2:	Fundraising	Appeals	Conducted	During	the	
Financial	Year
the following disclosures for the current period are included to comply with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991.

during the financial year pcfa raised funds primarily through:

•  solicited corporate and general donations;

•  gifts and bequests; and

•  charity events such as Movember.

RESulTS FRom FuNdRAISINg APPEAlS 2012 % 2011 %

$ $

gross income from fundraising and donations 12,216,383 10,561,098

total cost of fundraising (915,127) 7% (436,303) 4%

Net surplus from fundraising 11,301,256 93% 10,124,795 96%

total income 13.211,425 11,749,023

total expenditure 14,192,408 14,701,075

total payments to support services, awareness activities, projects 
and research

9,602,268 11,509,876

payments to support services, awareness activities, projects and 
research as a percentage of total income

73% 98%

payments to support services, awareness activities, projects and 
research as a percentage of total expenditure

67% 78%

further information on the application of the net surplus from fundraising and other income is contained in the statement of 
comprehensive income and the statement of cash flows.
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notes to tHe consolidated Financial statements 
For tHe year ended 30 June 2012

Note	3:	Revenue

2012 2011

$ $

revenue from government and other grants 1,310,000 180,395

fundraising revenue:

– donations 524,093 590,031

– corporate donations 400,938 1,058,892

– Major gifts 249,144 487,243

– direct mail 710,531 405,233

– Movember 6,100,000 5,000,000

– Major events 2,399,447 2,359,972

– trusts and foundations 493,501 426,377

– Merchandise sales 28,729 52,955

12,216,383 10,561,098

other revenue 147,219 36,458

share bequest portfolio – 218,871

interest and dividends received 847,823 932,596

Total revenue 13,211,425 11,749,023
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Note	4:	Net	(Deficit)	/	Surplus	for	the	Year

2012 2011

$ $

net (deficit)/ surplus for the year has been determined after the  
following expenses:

project – specialist nursing program 219,538 –

project – supporting men with prostate cancer through evidence-based 
resources and support

915,544 –

depreciation

– furniture and equipment 19,407 20,739

– leasehold improvements 2,744 –

employee benefits expense 2,111,891 1,940,188

rental expense on operating leases 330,154 311,799

auditor remuneration

– audit services 40,000 37,000

– other audit services re government grant acquittal 2,200 1,500

42,200 38,500
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Note	5:	Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents

Note	6:	Trade	and	Other	Receivables

2012 2011

$ $

CuRRENT

accounts receivable 242,023 31,370

Movember income receivable 3,600,000 2,500,000

interest receivable 17,989 119,772

gst receivable 102,966 48,495

other receivables – 14,904

3,962,978 2,714,541

other than the balances outlined above, pcfa does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable 
or group of receivables. pcfa does not hold any financial assets whose terms have been renegotiated, but which would 
otherwise be past due or impaired. there are no balances within trade receivables that contain assets that are not impaired 
and are past due.

2012 2011

$ $

CuRRENT

cash at bank 15,093,417 15,837,445

cash on hand 2,050 2,490

15,095,467  15,839,935
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Note	8:	Inventory

2012 2011

$ $

CuRRENT

inventory (at cost) 103,871 –

Note	7:	Other	Current	Assets

2012 2011

$ $

accrued income 187,243 –

prepayments 265,051 153,329

452,294 153,329
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Note	9:	Financial	Assets

2012 2011

$ $

NoN CuRRENT

Available-for-sale financial instruments:

Managed investment portfolio 843,354 1,009,416

direct share portfolio – 210,580

843,354 1,219,996

Held to Maturity financial instruments:

rental deposits 86,735 70,460

930,089 1,290,456

available-for-sale financial assets comprise of investments in managed funds and listed trusts and listed shares. there are no 
fixed returns or fixed maturity dates attached to these investments. a gain or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is 
recognised directly in equity, through the statement of changes in equity, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange 
gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
equity shall be recognised in profit or loss. pcfa does not hold these assets for trading or for short term profit making.

held to maturity financial assets comprise of bank deposits held.
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Note	10:	Plant	&	Equipment	and	Leasehold	
Improvements

2012 2011

$ $

plant and equipment

at cost 328,954 310,227

less accumulated depreciation (116,771) (97,364)

Total plant and equipment 212,183 212,863

2012 2011

$ $

leasehold improvements

at cost 11,500 –

less accumulated depreciation (2,744) –

Total plant and equipment 8,756 –

movements in Carrying Amounts Plant and equipment leasehold improvement

2011 $ $

balance at the beginning of the year 222,552 –

additions at cost 11,050 –

disposals – –

depreciation expense (20,739) –

Carrying amount at end of year 212,863 –

2012

balance at the beginning of the year 212,863 –

additions at cost 43,167 11,500

disposals (24,440) –

depreciation expense (19,407) (2,744)

Carrying amount at end of year 212,183 8,756
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Note	11:	Trade	and	Other	Payables	

2012 2011

$ $

trade creditors and accruals 646,561 238,311

short-term employees benefits 148,380 98,324

794,941 336,635

Financial liabilities at amortised cost classified as trade and other payables.

trade and other payables

– total current 769.090 336,635

– total non-current 25,851 –

794,941 336,635

less short term employee benefits (148,380) (98,324)

Financial liabilities as trade and other payables 646,561 238,311

Note	12:	Research	Grants	&	Specialist	Nursing	 
Program	Payable

2012 2011

$ $

CuRRENT

research grants payable 5,840,289 7,262,775

specialist nursing program payable 1,137,493 –

NoN CuRRENT

research grants payable 3,618,737 4,368,087

specialist nursing program payable 2,237,792 –

12,834,311 11,630,862

research grants payable relate to 57 (2011:63) approved applications to which pcfa are presently committed. these will be 
paid over the next 4 financial years according to the agreed letters of offer. 

specialist nursing program payable is based on funds received from or committed by Movember during previous financial 
years and retained for this purpose. contracts have been awarded to provide nurses in hospitals at various locations around 
australia and funds also set aside for evaluation of the program. these funds are to be expended over several years.
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Note	13:	Provisions

2012 2011

$ $

long service leave 13,514 14,852

nursing education 34,611 95,000

lease incentive 73,030 93,896

121,155 203,748

2012 long service leave Nursing Education lease incentive

$ $ $

Analysis of Total Provisions

opening balance at 1 July 14,852 95,000 93,896

additional provisions raised during year – 27,056 –

amounts used (1,338) (87,445) (20,866)

Balance at 30 june 13,514 34,611 73,030

Provision	for	long-term	employee	benefits

a provision has been recognised for employee entitlements relating to long service leave. in calculating the present value of 
future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave being taken is based on historical data. 
the measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits have been included in note 1 to this report.

Provision	for	Nursing	education

a provision has been recognised for amounts provided for education purposes for nurses. these claims are expected to be 
settled in the next financial year. the provision is based on funds received from an endowment.

Provision	for	Lease	incentive

the company entered into a new operating lease for pcfa’s sydney headquarters on 1 January, 2011 for a period of 4 years. 
pcfa received a rent free incentive of $104,395 in the form of rent, outgoings and parking. this incentive will be amortised 
over the life of the lease.

annual report 2011-2012 87



notes to tHe consolidated Financial statements 
For tHe year ended 30 June 2012

Note	14:	Reserves

Asset	Revaluation	Reserve

this reserve records the revaluation of financial assets classified as available-for-sale, which is the difference between the 
asset’s carrying value and market value at balance sheet date. the opening balance of the reserve at 1 July 2010 has been 
reduced by $187,106 through a transfer to retained earnings. the transfer relates to available-for-sale assets which were 
realised in previous periods.

 

Retained Earnings Asset Revaluation 
Reserve

Total

$ $ $

previously reported balance at 30/6/2010 11,269,725 (291,662) 10,978,063

adjustment (187,106) 187,106 –

Restated balance at 30/6/2010 11,082,619 (104,556) 10,978,063

Note	15:	Capital	and	Leasing	Commitments

(a)	Operating	lease	commitments

2012 2011

$ $

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the  
financial statements.

payable – minimum lease payments

– not later than 12 months 314,375 267,095

– later than 12 months but not later than 5 years 517,348 724,066

– greater than 5 years – –

831,723 991,161

the property lease commitments are non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised in the financial 
statements within a three year term. no capital commitments exist in regards to the operating lease commitments at year-
end. increase in lease commitments are in line with the lease agreements at an increase of 4% upon each anniversary date. 
pcfa are able to renew the term of operating leases for a further three years upon termination of the current lease period.

(b)	Capital	commitments

pcfa have no capital commitments that require disclosure in this report.
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Note	16:	Contingent	Liabilities	and	Assets

there were no contingencies to note as at the reporting date.

Note	17:	Events	After	Balance	Sheet	Date

subsequent to 30 June 2012, pcfa approved at its october 2012 national board meeting research grants totalling 
approximately $4,000,000 to be paid over the next four years. no other matters or circumstances have arisen since the 
end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of pcfa, the results of those 
operations, or the state of affairs of pcfa in subsequent financial years.

Note	18:	Key	Management	Personnel	Compensation

Short-term benefits
Post-

Employment 
Benefits

other long 
Term Employee 

Benefits

Salary & Fees other Superannuation
long Service 

leave Accrual
Total

2012

total compensation 183,752 – 16,538 – 200,290

2011

total compensation 246,447 – 15,633 821 262,901
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reconciliation of cashflow from operations with (deficit)/ surplus from ordinary activities after income tax.

2012 2011

$ $

deficit from ordinary activities (980,983) (2,952,052)

Non-cash flows

share bequest – (218,871)

loss on sale of financial assets 24,147 25,192

depreciation 22,151 20,739

Changes in assets and liabilities

(increase)/decrease in receivables and other assets (1,248,437) 1,268,991

increase in other current assets (298,965) (8,392)

increase in inventory (103,871) –

increase in program & grants payable 1,203,449 2,639,957

increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 458,306 (284,442)

(decrease)/increase in provisions (82,593) 172,586

(1,006,796) 663,708

Note	20:	Related	Party	Transactions

there were no related party transactions to note during the period.

Note	19:	Cash	Flow	Information
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pcfa’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, local money market instruments, short-term investments, 
accounts receivable and payable and leases. 

the totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with aasb 139 as detailed in the accounting 
policies to these financial statements, are as follows:

Note 2012 2011

$ $

Financial Assets

cash and cash equivalents 5 15,095,467 15,839,935

trade and other receivables 6 3,262,978 2,714,541

available-for-sale financial instruments 9 843,354 1,219,996

held to maturity financial instruments 9 86,735 70,460

19,288,534 19,844,932

Financial liabilities

financial liabilities at amortised cost 
– trade and other payables

11 646,561 238,311

646,561 238,311

Financial	Risk	Management	Policies

the pcfa finance and operations committee meet on a regular basis to assist pcfa in meeting its financial targets, whilst 
minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. future cash flow requirements are reviewed on a regular basis.

pcfa does not have any derivative instruments at 30 June 2012.

(a)  Interest rate risk

  exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at reporting date whereby a 
future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments.

  at 30 June 2012 pcfa is not exposed to any material interest bearing liabilities.

(b)  liquidity Risk

  liquidity risk arises from the possibility that pcfa might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise meeting 
its obligations related to financial liabilities. pcfa manages liquidity by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that 
adequate cash reserves are maintained.

  the table that follows reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities.

  cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s expectation as to the timing of realisation. actual timing 
may therefore differ from that disclosed. the timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities 
reflects the earliest contractual settlement dates.

Note	21:	Financial	Risk	Management
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Note	21:	Financial	Risk	Management	(continued)

Within 1 Year 1-5 Years over 5 Years Total contractual  
cash flow

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Financial 
liabilities 
due for 
payment

trade 
and other 
payables 
(excluding 
estimated 
annual leave) 620,710 238,311 25,851 – – – 646,561 238,311

Total 
expected 
outflows 620,710 238,311 25,851 – – – 646,561 238,311

Financial 
Assets – 
cash flows 
realisable

cash 
and cash 
equivalents 15,095,467 15,839,935 – – – – 15,095,467 15,839,935

trade 
and other 
receivables 3,962,978 2,714,541 – – – – 3,962,978 2,714,541

held to 
Maturity 
investments 86,735 70,460 – – – – 86,735 70,460

available-
for-sale 
investments – – – – 843,354 1,219,996 843,354 1,219,996

total 
anticipated 
inflows 19,145,180 18,624,936 – – 843,354 1,219,996 19,988,534 19,844,932

Net (outflow) 
/ inflow on 
financial 
instruments 18,524,470 18,386,625 (25,851) – 843,354 1,219,996 19,367,824 19,606,621
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(c)  Credit Risk

  pcfa does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single receivable under financial instruments entered into 
by pcfa.

(d)  Price risk

  pcfa is not exposed to any material commodity price risk.

Net	Fair	Values

the net fair values of all financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying value. the accounting policies, terms and 
conditions of these items are the normal commercial policies, terms and conditions adopted by businesses in australia. 

the aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the balance 
sheet and in the notes to the financial statements.

Sensitivity	analysis

no sensitivity analysis has been performed for interest rate risk as pcfa is not materially exposed to fluctuations  
in interest rates.

no sensitivity analysis has been performed for foreign exchange risk as pcfa is not materially exposed to fluctuations  
in foreign currency rates.

Note	22:	Foundation	Details

the registered office and principal place of business of pcfa is:

level 3, 39-41 chandos street 
st leonards, new south Wales, 2065
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the individual financial statements for the parent entity show the following aggregate amounts:

2012 2011

$ $

Balance Sheet – –

current assets – –

total assets – –

current liabilities – –

total liabilities – –

shareholders’ equity – –

profit or loss for the year – –

Total Comprehensive Income – –

prostate cancer foundation of australia limited (abn 42 073 253 924), a company limited by guarantee, is the corporate 
trustee for its only controlled entity, prostate cancer foundation of australia (abn 31 521 774 656).

prostate cancer foundation of australia limited is incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001. if it is wound up, the 
constitution states that each member is required to contribute a maximum of $10 each towards meeting any outstanding  
and obligations of pcfa. as at 30 June 2012 the number of members was 99 (2011: 91)

Note	23:	Parent	Entity	Financial	Information
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director’s declaration

Directors’	Declaration

the directors of pcfa declare that:

1.  the consolidated financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 9 to 31, are in accordance with the  
Corporations Act 2001:

 (a)  comply with australian accounting standards and the corporations regulations 2001; and:

 (b)  give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2011 and of the performance for the year ended on that 
date of pcfa.

2.  in the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that pcfa will be able to pay its debts as and when they 
become due and payable.

3.  pursuant to schedule 1, section 7(3) of the nsW charitable fundraising regulations 2008;

 (a)  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of income and 
expenditure of pcfa for the year ended 30 June 2012 with respect to fundraising appeals;

 (b)  the consolidated statement of financial position and statement of cash flows are drawn up so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of pcfa as at 30 June 2012 with respect to fundraising appeals;

 (c)  the provisions of the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and the regulations under the act and the conditions attached to 
pcfa have been complied with for the year ended 30 June 2012; and

 (d)  the internal controls exercised by pcfa are appropriate and effective in accounting for all income received and 
applied by pcfa from any of the fundraising appeals.

this declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors.

Chris Hall 
director

dated this 31st day of october 2012 
sydney, nsW
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independent auditor’s report

Report	on	the	financial	report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of prostate cancer foundation of australia limited (the company),  
which comprises the balance sheet as at 30 June 2012, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other 
explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration for the prostate cancer foundation of australia (the consolidated entity).  
the consolidated entity comprises the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during  
the financial year.

Directors’	responsibility	for	the	financial	report

the directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
accordance with australian accounting standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. in note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with accounting standard aasb 101 presentation 
of financial statements, that the financial statements comply with australian accounting standards (including australian 
accounting interpretations).

Auditor’s	responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with australian auditing standards. these auditing standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements 
relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is 
free from material misstatement. 

an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report. 
the procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that  
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s  
internal control. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness  
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

our procedures include reading the other information in the annual report to determine whether it contains any material 
inconsistencies with the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Additional	Scope	pursuant	to	the	Charitable	Fundraising	Act	1991

in addition, our audit statements have been prepared for the members of the company in accordance with section 24(2) of 
the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991. accordingly we have performed additional work beyond that which is performed in our 
capacity as auditors pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001. these additional procedures included obtaining an understanding 
of the internal control structure for fundraising appeal activities and examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting 
compliance with the accounting and associated record keeping requirements for fundraising appeal activities pursuant to the 
Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and regulations.

it should be noted that the accounting records and data relied upon for reporting on fundraising appeal activities are not 
continuously audited and do not necessarily reflect after the event accounting adjustments and the normal period end 
financial adjustments for such matters as accruals, prepayments, provisioning and valuation necessary for period end financial 
statement preparation.
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the performance of our audit included a review of internal controls for the purpose of determining the appropriate audit 
procedures to enable an opinion to be expressed on the financial statements. this review is not a comprehensive review of all 
those systems or of the system taken as a whole and is not designed to uncover all weaknesses in those systems. the audit 
opinion expressed in these statements pursuant to the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and regulations has been formed on the 
above basis.

Independence

in conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001.

Qualification

it is not always practicable for the company to establish accounting control over all forms of donations prior to receipt of these 
funds and accordingly it is not possible for our examination to include procedures which extend beyond the amounts of such 
income recorded in the accounting records of the company.

Qualified	Auditor’s	opinion	pursuant	to	the	Corporations	Act	2001

in our opinion, except for the effects, if any of the qualification set out above:

(a)  the financial report of prostate cancer foundation of australia limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 
including:

 (i)  giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2012 and of its performance for 
the year ended on that date; and

 (ii)  complying with australian accounting standards (including the australian accounting interpretations) and the 
corporations regulations 2001; and

(b)  the financial report and notes also comply with australian accounting standards as disclosed in note 1.

Qualified	Auditor’s	Opinion	pursuant	to	the	Charitable	Fundraising	Act	1991

in our opinion, except for the effects, if any of the qualification set out above:

(a)   the financial report of prostate cancer foundation of australia limited gives a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial result of fundraising appeal activities for the financial year ended 30 June 2012

(b)  the consolidated financial statements have been properly drawn up, and the associated records have been properly  
kept for the period from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012, in accordance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and its 
regulations; and

(c)  Money received as a result of fundraising appeal activities conducted during the period from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012 
has been properly accounted for and applied in accordance with the Charitable Fundraising Act 1991 and its regulations.

mark driessen 
partner 
Walterturnbull

dated this 31st day of october 2012 
sydney, nsW

liability limited by a scheme, approved under professional standards legislation

governance & Finance
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tHanK you

rotary club of altona
rotary club of ararat
rotary club of armidale
rotary club of armidale central
rotary club of armidale north
rotary club of beecroft
rotary club of belrose
rotary club of belvoir-Wodonga inc
rotary club of bentleigh Moorabbin central
rotary club of berwick
rotary club of boonah
rotary club of camberwell
rotary club of campbelltown
rotary club of castle hill
rotary club of charles sturt grange
rotary club of cockburn
rotary club of coonabarabran
rotary club of crookwell
rotary club of crows nest
rotary club of devonport north inc
rotary club of devonport south-east
rotary club of fitzroy
rotary club of goolwa
rotary club of gosford north
rotary club of grenfell

PCFA relies on the generosity of the community, companies and individuals to advance 
its research, raise awareness and provide support to men diagnosed with prostate 
cancer and their families. PCFA sincerely thanks all donors and supporters who 
generously made a contribution during the 2011/2012 financial year. 

Listed below are the individuals who contributed $1,000 or more, and companies  
and community fundraisers who gave $5,000 or more.

Rotary	
in 1996 the members of the rotary 
club of lane cove established the 
prostate cancer research foundation 
ltd. the company merged in 1999 
with the australian prostate cancer 
foundation which was also founded in 
1996, and the association of prostate 
cancer support groups, which was 
established in 1988, and changed its 
name to prostate cancer foundation 
of australia limited on 12 July 1999. 
since this time, the organisation has 
grown tremendously to become the 
peak body for prostate cancer in 
this country. like its founders, the 
organisation is dedicated to making 
an impact on the lives of men with 
prostate cancer and their families. 
pcfa would like to acknowledge 
rotary for its ongoing commitment  
to the organisation and its mission.

rotary club of grovedale
rotary club of gunnedah
rotary club of hillarys
rotary club of inverell
rotary club of Jindalee
rotary club of Kaniva
rotary club of Kariong/somersby inc
rotary club of Kempsey West inc
rotary club of lane cove
rotary club of leeton
rotary club of lockhart
rotary club of loxton inc
rotary club of Margaret river
rotary club of Maryborough
rotary club of Morwell
rotary club of Mount druitt
rotary club of Murrurundi
rotary club of narrabri
rotary club of narromine
rotary club of noosa
rotary club of north sydney
rotary club of nowra
rotary club of perth
rotary club of pittsworth
rotary club of port fairy
rotary club of port lincoln
rotary club of preston
rotary club of red cliffs
rotary club of rockhampton east
rotary club of ryde
rotary club of rylstone-Kandos
rotary club of shepparton
rotary club of sorrento inc
rotary club of swan districts
rotary club of tamworth
rotary club of tamworth West
rotary club of temora
rotary club of turramurra
rotary club of victor harbor inc
rotary club of Wagga Wagga Korringal
rotary club of Wagga Wagga sunrise
rotary club of Wallsend-Maryland
rotary club of Warrnambool east
rotary club of Whittlesea
rotary club of Windsor
rotary club of Wodonga
rotary district 9820

Corporate	Partners
apache energy limited
atlassian pty ltd
bhp billiton

brackwell pty ltd
charity greeting cards pty ltd
commonwealth bank of australia
crust gourmet group
farmoz pty ltd
harley-davidson australia
hire a hubby
JJ richard & sons pty limited
Macquarie group foundation
Macquarie group services australia pty ltd
origin alliance
pirtek fluid systems pty ltd
Qantas airways limited
reece australia ltd
sapuraacergy
simson cards
sydney Water
Western power

Trusts	&	Clubs	
paul ainsworth family foundation 
alfred & Jean dickson foundation
bell charitable fund
blackwater rugby union football association
cMv foundation inasmuch 
campsie r.s.l. sub-branch club ltd
central coast leagues club
club rivers
country Women’s association of nsW
cure cancer australia foundation
green acres golf club
lions club of goomalling
Moss vale services club ltd
parramatta national rugby league club limited
perpetual trustee company limited
riverwood legion & community club ltd
robMeree foundation
steadfast foundation
szykman charitable foundation
the Movember group pty ltd
the liv-better foundation
the stan perron charitable trust

Estates	&	In-Memoriam
estate late patrick francis byrne
estate late William h denton
estate late robin Michael furniss
estate late cyril gordon lilburne
estate late the late rod s Mcintosh
estate late Keith lionel smith
estate late the late Maurice austin spillane
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estate late samuel harold sing
estate late olive Joyce stevens
estate late garton alfred thurgood
in Memory of the late Mr Mario bastone
in Memory of the late Mr gary binding
in Memory of the late Mr Maurice bousaada
in Memory of the late Mr stan douglas
in Memory of the late Mr nick drummond
in Memory of the late Mr david goldsmith
in Memory of the late Mr lewis gusman
in Memory of the late Mr andrew John Kelly
in Memory of the late Mr Monty love
in Memory of the late Mr bruce Mcdougall
in Memory of the late Mr Miftar Miftarai
in Memory of the late Mr theo papageorge
in Memory of the late Mr randall smallwood
in Memory of the late Mr John stevens
in Memory of the late Ms robert J taylor
in Memory of the late Mr William Walsh
in Memory of the late Mr donald Waters
in Memory of the late Mr david yuk Wun

Individuals	&	Community	
Supporters
1912, the event
advertiser sunday Mail foundation
leonard h ainsworth
alcoa
american Medical system
apl financial pty ltd
sarah-Jane arnold
artarmon Masonic hall co. pty limited
atlassian pty ltd
ausbil dexia limited
aust brokers holding ltd
australian institute of superannuation trustees
balmain sports Medicine
graham barber
bathurst prostate cancer support group
bayview golf club
bendigo publishing pty ltd
bJ & Jb chapman pty ltd
boQ aspley
bornhorst + Ward consulting engineers
ian boucher
braemac pty ltd
robert brakspear
bunnings group limited
bupa uK
burdekin rugby union club
peter h butts
c h group pty ltd
John cameron
carbrook golf club
cass brothers
castle hill country club
celebration homes
rod s chandler
citizens Who care
classic and vintage Motor club
richard collins
commercial club (albury) ltd

coonawarra vignerons association
Mick corboy
corporate rugby tens pty ltd
cpu
gus cummings
John cunningham
heath curtis
dedes group
steve devereaux
dillon partners
dixon homes
d doherty
bayne douthie
emeritus professor dexter dunphy aM
dural country club Men’s bowling club
dyson group of companies
Kathleen earle
east Malvern tennis club
east gippsland newspapers
electrical and communications association
richard emery
equity and advisory
rob evans
executive interim Management pty ltd
cW & Ja farmer
farmers hotel social club
finance life
ailsa e fitzpatrick
colin flint
christopher flynn
friday Warriors
fujitsu
g Warner pty ltd
andrew gatti
gladstone community service club inc
andrew godwin
alan green
Julian and lydia grobler
h & K Johnston family foundation
Warren hann
ray hare
paul harrop
John & rhonda hawley
ian d heathwood
geoffrey henderson
darryl henning
hobart pathology – diagnostic services
geoffery f hodge
J l hoge
Mark huxtable
independent liquor retailers pty ltd
robert inglis
James hardie (aust) pty ltd
Janssen-cilag pty ltd
bill Jauncey
graeme Johnson
Maurice Kelly
arnold Keuker
travis Knipe
Kurra village ess
Kerry langdon down
ledge point country club
leighton contractors pty ltd
graham lennon

lodge Millenniun no 2000 ugl of nsW & act
a.J lucas
tom lyons
lyons airconditioning services
Mackay & district prostate cancer support 
group
ruth Macmillan
Maitland rugby club
Major league corporate Marketing
Jay Malig
a & s Malouf
guy Mander
linda Marie
theodoros Marinis
tom Marish
brian Marsh
Mather foundation ltd
Mcdermott australia pty ltd
david McManus
chris Mcpherson
Melbourne grammar school
ian Miller
patricia Miller
professor John Mills
lorna philomena Miranda
Mona vale golf club limited
Moonee valley city council
stuart Moss
Mossgiel hall committee
robert Mostyn
Moura apex fish stocking group
Jul Murphy
national servicemen’s association of australia 
riverland sa
national servicemen’s association of australia
neweys dry cleaners
david newman
davy nielsen
nine network australia
Joanne nix
nomads golf club brisbane
northern rivers evening prostate cancer 
support group
northern rivers prostate cancer support group
now solutions
orange prostate cancer support group
ord Minnett limited
orthocare pty ltd
bevan palmer
panacadian association of Melbourne & 
victoria limited
ray pardo
david parkhouse
andrew percy
poste-haste fMs
colin povall
M W f powell
premier pr
prostate awareness australia inc
protrust pty ltd
rod punshon
Queensland country credit union ltd
leigh reeves
robern Menz
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richard rogers
alma ross
david rout
allan t rowe
royal fremantle golf club
david sandoe oaM
pamela sandoe oaM
sedgman pty ltd
g e sharp
charles d sheardown
shire of Mt Marshall
r f smart
Michael sneddon
southside sport and community club
switch on inc
sydney Markets foundation inc
g taylor
taylor robinson
the adonis society
the good guys
the long ride group
the vintage and historic Motor cycle club
thiess pty ltd (Mt owen Mine)
think pink realty
ralph & Jean thomas
christina thomas
thomas hare investments ltd
three’s a crowd design pty ltd
toowoomba rangers rugby union club
don tribe
glen truscott
david tunbridge
vbh supplies pty ltd
shane Walsh
Walsh’s auto
leigh Wilkins
hayden Wilson
christopher yeates
raymond young

Pro	Bono	Support	
pcfa is appreciative of the ongoing, 
generous contributions of the  
following companies:

allens arthur robinson
angove Wines
carat
coloplast
finity consulting
KpMg
Macquarie radio network
veolia transport

Honorary	Life	Members
Mr roger climpson oaM
emeritus prof dexter dunphy aM
Mr bruce fisher
the late Mr Max gardner aM
Mr peter hledik
Mr graeme Johnson

Mr James o’ryan
prof pamela russell aM
Mr tom tait 
Ms patricia Watson

Members
Mr neil adams
Mr trevor anderson
Mrs roz baker
Mr peter ball
Mr charlie barnett
Mrs robyn barrett
Mr Michael barrett
Mr don baumber
prof robert baxter
Mr bob bell 
Ms donna benstead
Mr Mike brady
Mr steve callister
Mr John cameron
Ms christine carberry
Mr bob cartwright
Mr david chapman
Mr harry clarsen aM
professor Judith clements
Mr roger climpson oaM
Mr John coates
Mr paul cook
prof tony costello
Mr John cronly
Mr david curtain Qc
Mr chris curtis
Mr dick dawes
Mr John dillon
Mr John donald
Mr phil dudgeon
emeritus prof dexter dunphy aM
Ms dominique fisher
Mr Jack fraenkel
Mr John fraser 
Mr Jim freemantle 
Ms Win gaffney 
Mr peter gebert 
Mr andrew giles 
Mr noel gladen 
Mr david gregory 
Mr des grogan 
Mr tom grozier 
Mr chris hall 
Mr peter haylen 
Mr Jim holmes 
Mr Jim hughes aM
dr Michael izard 
Mr terry Jackman 
Mr ian Jagelman 
Mr Justin Jamieson
Mr graeme Johnson
dr phillip Katelaris
Mr Jeff leach
Mr adrian lester
Mr rex lewis 
the hon Jim lloyd Mp

Mr ian longbottom
dr anthony lowe
Mr david Madson
Mr david Mah chut
prof villis Marshall ac
Mr lindsay May
Mr Mike Mcclellan
Mr bill Mchugh
dr Ken Michael ac
Mrchris Mihos 
prof John Mills
Mr alan Moran
Mr des Moulday
Mr William Munro
Mr John norris
Ms Karen olesnicky
Mr Jonathon oppy
Mr James o’ryan
Mr John palmer
Mr les payne
Mr ted pollock
Mr graeme postlethwaite
Mr John preston
Mr Marty rhone
dr John rogers
Mr frank rule
Mr graham rushforth 
prof pamela russell aM
Mr david sandoe oaM
Mr david schmidt
prof Martin silink aM
Ms ann smith
Mr ian smith
dr ross snow
Mr Morgan solomon
Mr anthony l sonneveld oaM
assoc prof phillip stricker
Mr tom tait
Ms lynette thurnham
Mr geoff underwood
Mrs glenda von Wootten
Mr phillip Wade
Ms Kaye Walker
Ms patricia Watson
Mr roger Wescombe
Mr terry Wheeler
Ms anita Ziemer

Research	Partners
cancer australia
cure cancer australia foundation
the Movember foundation
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Tony	Davison
Prostate Cancer Survivor
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